UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant \Box

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant \Box

Check the appropriate box:

- Dereliminary Proxy Statement
- □ Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- □ Definitive Proxy Statement
- Definitive Additional Materials
- □ Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check all boxes that apply):

- \boxtimes No fee required
- □ Fee paid previously with preliminary materials
- □ Fee computed on table in exhibit required by Item 25(b) per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11



ADTHEORENT HOLDING COMPANY, INC. 330 Hudson Street, 13th Floor New York, New York 10013

NOTICE OF 2023 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS To be held on May 24, 2023

To All Stockholders of AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc.:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") of AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("we" or the "Company"), will be held virtually over the internet using the link, www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ADTH2023, on May 24, 2023 at 9:00 a.m., EST, for the following purposes.

- 1. To re-elect the following directors to Class II of the Board of Directors ("Board"): Vineet Mehra and Zia Uddin. To elect Shuangxiu Yu to Class II of the Board.
- 2. To ratify the Company's appointment of BDO USA, LLP ("BDO") to serve as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the Company's fiscal year ending December 31, 2023 (the "Auditor Proposal").
- 3. To approve an amendment (the "Officer Exculpation Amendment") to the Company's Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the "Charter") to reflect new Delaware law provisions regarding the exculpation of certain of the Company's executive officers.
- 4. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting.

Only stockholders of record as of the close of business on March 31, 2023, the date fixed by the Board as the record date for the meeting, are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the meeting. The Annual Meeting will be a completely virtual meeting. There will be no physical meeting location. The meeting will be conducted via live webcast. Stockholders will have the same rights and opportunities to participate in our virtual annual meeting as they would at an in-person meeting. For more information on our virtual annual meeting, including details on how to attend the meeting, see the instructions under "Instructions for the Virtual Annual Meeting" on page 1 of this Proxy Statement.

Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, and regardless of the number of shares of Common Stock you own, please vote as soon as possible. We urge you to date, sign and return the proxy card in the envelope provided to you, or to use the telephone or Internet method of voting described on your proxy card, even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, so that if you are unable to attend the Annual Meeting, your shares can be voted. Any stockholder of record who submits a proxy card retains the right to revoke such proxy card by: (i) submitting a written notice of such revocation to the President of the Company so that it is received no later than 5:00 p.m., EST on May 23, 2023; (ii) submitting a duly signed proxy card bearing a later date than the previously signed and dated proxy card to the President of the Company so that it is received no later than 5:00 p.m., EST on May 23, 2023; or (iii) attending the Annual Meeting virtually and voting thereat the shares represented by such proxy card. Attendance at the Annual Meeting will not, in and of itself, constitute revocation of a completed, signed and dated proxy card previously returned. All such later-dated proxy cards or written notices revoking a proxy card should be sent to AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc., 330 Hudson Street, 13th Floor New York, New York 10013, Attention: James Lawson, Chief Executive Officer. If you hold shares of Common Stock in street name, you must contact the firm that holds your shares to change or revoke any prior voting instructions. Please read carefully the enclosed Proxy Statement, which explains the proposals to be considered by you and acted upon at the Annual Meeting.

The Board has fixed the close of business on March 31, 2023 as the record date for the determination of holders of record of Common Stock entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting. A list of stockholders of record of the Company as of the record date will remain open for inspection during the Annual Meeting until the closing of the polls thereat.

If you have any questions about the procedures for admission to the Annual Meeting, please contact April Scee, Investor Relations at <u>AdTheorentIR@icrinc.com</u> or (646) 277-1219.

April [•], 2023

By Order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ James Lawson

James Lawson Chief Executive Officer

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS

This Proxy Statement, the form of proxy card, our 2023 Annual Report to Stockholders and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, are available to you on our website at www.adtheorent.com. Stockholders may also obtain a copy of these materials by writing to AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc., 330 Hudson Street, 13th Floor New York, New York 10013, Attention: Secretary. Upon payment of a reasonable fee, stockholders may also obtain a copy of the exhibits to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING | 1 |
|---|----|
| PROPOSAL ONE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS | 6 |
| MANAGEMENT | 7 |
| EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION | 17 |
| CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS | 30 |
| BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS | 34 |
| PROPOSAL TWO—RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM | 36 |
| CHANGE IN AUDITORS | 36 |
| AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT | 38 |
| PROPOSAL THREE — THE OFFICER EXCULPATION AMENDMENT PROPOSAL | 39 |
| STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2024 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS | 41 |
| OTHER MATTERS | 41 |
| ANNEX A | 42 |
| | |

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING

Why did you send me this proxy statement?

We sent you this proxy statement because the Board is soliciting your proxy to vote at the Annual Meeting to be held on May 24, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. Eastern Time and at any postponements or adjournments of the Annual Meeting. This proxy statement summarizes information that is intended to assist you in making an informed vote on the proposals described in this proxy statement.

Who can vote at the Annual Meeting?

Only stockholders as of the record date are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. The record date to determine stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting is the close of business on March 31, 2023. On the record date, there were [•] shares of common stock outstanding. Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote on each proposal. We do not have cumulative voting rights for the election of directors.

How many shares must be present to conduct the Annual Meeting?

We must have a quorum present in person or by proxy to conduct the Annual Meeting. A quorum is established when the holders of a majority in voting power of shares of common stock of the Company issued and outstanding and entitled to vote at the meeting is present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes (as described below) are counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present.

What matters are to be voted on at the Annual Meeting?

The agenda for the Annual Meeting is to:

- 1. elect three director nominees;
- 2. ratify the retention of BDO as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2023;
- 3. approve the Officer Exculpation Amendment proposal; and
- 4. conduct any other business properly brought before the Annual Meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof

As of the date of this proxy statement, we do not know of any other matters to be presented at the Annual Meeting. If any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, however, the persons named as proxies will be authorized to vote or otherwise act in accordance with their judgment.

How does the Board recommend that I vote?

The Board recommends that you vote:

- 1. FOR the election of each of our director nominees named in this proxy statement;
- 2. FOR the ratification of the retention of BDO as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2023; and
- **3. FOR** the Officer Exculpation Amendment proposal.

How do I vote at the Annual Meeting

Stockholders of record, who hold shares registered in their names, can vote by:



Telephone and internet voting facilities for stockholders of record will be available 24 hours a day. You may vote over the telephone or via the Internet until 11:59 p.m. on May 23, 2023.

Stockholders of record and beneficial stockholders may vote online during the Annual Meeting. You may cast your vote electronically during the Annual Meeting using the 16-digit control number included in your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, on your proxy card, or on any additional voting instructions accompanying these proxy materials. If you do not have a control number, please contact your broker, bank, or other nominee as soon as possible so that you can be provided with a control number.

Beneficial owners, who own shares through a bank, brokerage firm, or other nominee, can vote by returning the voting instruction form, or by following the instructions for voting via telephone or the internet, as provided by the bank, broker, or other nominee. If you own shares in different accounts or in more than one name, you may receive different voting instructions for each type of ownership. Please vote all of your shares.

Even if you plan to participate in our Annual Meeting via virtual web conference, please cast your vote as soon as possible.

Your proxy will be voted in accordance with your instructions, so long as, in the case of a proxy card returned by mail, such card has been signed and dated. If you vote your shares via the Internet, by telephone or by executing and returning a proxy card by mail but you do not provide specific instructions with respect to the proposals, your shares will be voted FOR the director nominees named in this proxy statement and FOR the ratification of the retention of our independent registered public accounting firm.

As of the date of this proxy statement, we do not know of any matters to be presented at the Annual Meeting except those described in this proxy statement. If any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, however, the persons named as proxies will be authorized to vote or otherwise act in accordance with their judgment.

During the Annual Meeting, a list of stockholders entitled to vote will be available for examination at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ADTH2023. The list will also be available for 10 days prior to the Annual Meeting at our principal executive office at the address listed above.

What does it mean if I receive more than one Notice?

You may receive more than one Notice, more than one e-mail or multiple proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your shares in more than one brokerage account, you may receive a separate Notice, a separate e-mail or a separate voting instruction card for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are a stockholder of record and your shares are registered in more than one name, you may receive more than one e-mail or more than one proxy card. To vote all of your shares by proxy, you must complete, sign, date and return each proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive and vote over the Internet the shares represented by each Notice that you receive (unless you have requested and received a proxy card or voting instruction card for the shares represented by one or more of those Notices).



May I change my vote?

Yes. You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted at the Annual Meeting. To change your vote, if you are a stockholder of record, you may submit another later dated proxy by telephone, Internet or mail or by voting your shares electronically on the virtual meeting platform at the Annual Meeting (your attendance at the Annual Meeting will not, by itself, revoke your proxy; you must vote in person at the Annual Meeting to revoke your proxy). If you are a beneficial owner and your shares are held in street name, you may change your vote by submitting new voting instructions to your bank, broker, trustee or nominee, or if you have obtained a legal proxy from such entity giving you the right to vote your shares, you may change your vote by attending the Annual Meeting and voting electronically on the virtual meeting platform;

What vote is required to elect directors and approve the other matters described in this proxy statement?

The director nominees must receive the affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the election of directors.

For the ratification of the retention of BDO as our independent registered public accounting firm (Proposal No. 2), the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares present in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote. Accordingly, abstentions will have the effect of a negative vote on Proposal No. 2. Absent specific instructions on Proposal No. 2, brokers are permitted to exercise voting discretion with respect to such proposal. For additional information about broker non-votes see "How do I vote if my bank or broker holds my shares in 'street name'?"

For approving the Officer Exculpation Amendment proposal, the affirmative vote of at least a majority of our outstanding voting shares is required. Abstentions will count as present and entitled to vote for purposes of this proposal and will have the effect of a vote against this proposal. Broker non-votes will have the effect of a vote against this proposal.

What is the difference between holding shares as a stockholder of record and as a beneficial owner?

If your shares are registered in your name on the Company's books and records or with our transfer agent, you are the "stockholder of record" of those shares, and this proxy statement and accompanying materials have been provided directly to you by the Company. On the other hand, if you purchased your shares through a brokerage or other financial intermediary, the brokerage or other financial intermediary will automatically put your shares into "street name" which means that the brokerage or other financial intermediary will hold your shares in its name or another nominee's name and not in your name, but will keep records showing you as the "beneficial owner." If you hold shares beneficially in street name, this proxy statement and accompanying materials have been forwarded to you by your broker, bank or other holder of record.

How do I vote if my bank or broker holds my shares in "street name"?

If you hold your shares in "street name" through a bank, broker or other nominee, such bank, broker or nominee will vote those shares in accordance with your instructions. To so instruct your bank, broker or nominee, you should refer to the information provided to you by such entity. Without instructions from you, a bank, broker or nominee will be permitted to exercise its own voting discretion with respect to so-called routine matters (Proposal No. 2 (ratification of auditors)), but will not be permitted to exercise voting discretion with respect to non-routine matters (Proposal No. 1 (director elections) and Proposal No. 3 (Officer Exculpation Amendment)). Thus, if you do not give your bank, broker or nominee specific instructions with respect to Proposal No. 2, your shares will be voted in such entity's discretion. If you do not give your bank, broker or nominee specific instructions with respect to Proposal No. 1 or Proposal No. 3, your shares will not be voted on such proposals. This is called a "broker non-vote." Shares represented by such broker non-votes will be counted in determining whether there is a quorum. We urge you to promptly provide your bank, broker or nominee with appropriate voting instructions so that all your shares may be voted at the Annual Meeting.

How will the votes be counted at the Annual Meeting?

The votes will be counted by the inspector of election appointed for the Annual Meeting.

How will the Company announce the voting results?

The Company will report the final results of the voting at the Annual Meeting in a filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on a Current Report on Form 8-K.

Who pays for the Company's solicitation of proxies?

The Board is soliciting your proxy to vote your shares of common stock at our Annual Meeting. We will bear the cost of soliciting proxies on behalf of the Company, including preparing, printing and mailing this proxy statement. Proxies may be solicited personally, by mail, email or by telephone by certain of our directors, officers, employees or representatives. Our directors and employees will not be paid any additional compensation for soliciting proxies. We will reimburse brokerage houses, banks, custodians and other nominees and fiduciaries for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in forwarding our proxy solicitation materials.

What is "householding" and how does it work?

Under the rules adopted by the SEC, we may deliver a single set of proxy materials to one address shared by two or more of our stockholders. This delivery method is referred to as "householding" and can result in significant cost savings. To take advantage of this opportunity, we have delivered only one set of proxy materials to multiple stockholders who share an address, unless we received contrary instructions from the impacted stockholders prior to the mailing date. We agree to deliver promptly, upon written or oral request, a separate copy of the proxy materials, as requested, to any stockholder at the shared address to which a single copy of these documents was delivered. If you prefer to receive separate copies of the Notice, proxy statement or annual report, contact Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. by calling 1-800-542-1061 or in writing at Broadridge, Householding Department, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, New York 11717.

In addition, if you currently are a stockholder who shares an address with another stockholder and would like to receive only one copy of future notices and proxy materials for your household, you may notify your broker if your shares are held in a brokerage account or you may notify us if you hold registered shares. Registered stockholders may notify us by contacting Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. at the above telephone number or address or sending a written request to AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc. 330 Hudson Street, 13th Floor New York, New York 10013, Attention: Secretary.

How do I participate in the Annual Meeting?

We are hosting the Annual Meeting through a virtual web conference. You will not be able to attend the meeting in person. You will be able to attend the virtual annual meeting, vote your shares electronically, and submit your questions during the live webcast of the meeting by visiting www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ADTH2023 and entering your 16-digit control number included in your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, on your proxy card, or on any additional voting instructions accompanying these proxy materials. The Annual Meeting will begin promptly at 9:00 a.m. Eastern Time. Online check-in will be available beginning at 8:30 a.m. Eastern Time. Please allow ample time for the online check-in process. Please be assured that you will be afforded the same rights and opportunities to participate in the virtual meeting as you would at an in-person meeting.

As part of the Annual Meeting, we will hold a question and answer session, during which we intend to answer questions submitted during the meeting in accordance with the Annual Meeting procedures which are pertinent to the Company and the meeting matters, as time permits. Questions may be submitted during the Annual Meeting through www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ADTH2023. Questions and answers will be grouped by topic and substantially similar questions will be grouped and answered once.

There will be technicians ready to assist you with any technical difficulties you may have accessing the virtual meeting website. If you encounter any difficulties accessing the virtual meeting website during the



check-in or meeting time, please call the technical support number that will be posted on the Annual Meeting login page.

Are there rules of conduct for the Annual Meeting?

Yes, the rules of conduct for the Annual Meeting will be available by visiting www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ADTH2023. The rules of conduct will provide information regarding the rules and procedures for participating in the Annual Meeting.

PROPOSAL ONE ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has three classes of directors. The term of each directorship is three years so that one class of directors is elected each year. All directors are elected for three-year terms and until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

Upon the recommendation of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, the Board has nominated Vineet Mehra and Zia Uddin to stand for re-election to the Board and Shuangxiu Yu to stand for election as Class II directors for a three-year term ending at the annual meeting of stockholders in 2026 or until their successors, if any, are elected or appointed.

Our Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation ("Charter") and Amended and Restated Bylaws ("Bylaws") provide for the annual election of directors. As described below under "Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions," pursuant to our Stockholder's Agreement, H.I.G. currently has the right to nominate four (4) directors to our Board and the Sponsor currently has the right to nominate one (1) director to our Board. Richard Boghosian was one of the original directors nominated to the Board by H.I.G. pursuant to the Stockholders' Agreement. Mr. Boghosian will not continue on our board upon the expiration of his term. Pursuant to the Stockholders' Agreement, H.I.G. has asked the Nominating Committee to nominate Ms. Yu to the seat being vacated by Mr. Boghosian upon the expiration of his term. Mr. Uddin was nominated by the Sponsor. Each director nominee must receive the affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting. Unless contrary instructions are given, the shares represented by your proxy will be voted FOR the election of all director nominees.

The Board of Directors has no reason to believe that any of the nominees will not serve if elected. However, if any nominee becomes unavailable to serve as a director, the Company representatives named on the proxy card will have discretion and authority to vote for another nominee proposed by our Board unless you submit a proxy withholding your vote from the nominee being substituted. Alternatively, our Board may reduce the number of directors to be elected at the Annual Meeting.

Biographical information relating to each of the director nominees is set forth below under "Management" and incorporated by reference herein.

THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" THE ELECTION OF EACH OF THE DIRECTOR NOMINEES NAMED IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT AS CLASS II DIRECTORS.

MANAGEMENT

Information about Executive Officers and Directors of the Company

Our directors, director nominee and executive officers and their ages (as of April [•], 2023) are as follows:

| Age | Position | |
|-----|--|--|
| | | |
| 50 | Chief Executive Officer and Director | |
| 43 | Chief Financial Officer | |
| 50 | Chief Revenue Officer | |
| 53 | Chief Technology Officer | |
| 38 | Chief Innovation Officer | |
| | | |
| 44 | Chairperson and Director | |
| 59 | Director | |
| 48 | Director | |
| 44 | Director | |
| 38 | Director | |
| 57 | Director | |
| 51 | Director | |
| 32 | Director Nominee | |
| | 50 43 50 53 38 44 59 48 44 38 57 51 | |

(1) Member of the Compensation Committee

(2) Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

(3) Member of the Audit Committee

Executive Officers

James Lawson is currently the Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Board. Mr. Lawson has served as a member of the board of directors of Legacy AdTheorent (as defined below) since its inception in February 2012. From February 2012 to December 2017, Mr. Lawson served as a Managing Partner and Chief Legal Officer of Legacy AdTheorent. Prior to becoming Chief Executive Officer in January 2019. Mr. Lawson served as Chief Operating Officer and General Counsel from January 2018 to December 2018. Mr. Lawson previously served on the board of directors of Barometric from April 2018 to November 2018. Mr. Lawson has been a member of the Board of Mogility Capital, LLC, with respect to Mogility Capital Fund I, L.P., an early-stage venture capital fund and lead investor in Legacy AdTheorent, since 2010, and has been a member of the board of directors of The Ticket Chest Corp. since 2000. Previously, Mr. Lawson served as General Counsel and executive-level management to VC-backed and publicly traded companies, including Augme Technologies, Inc., a publicly traded mobile marketing technology services provider, and Interactions, LLC, a leading communications technology and service provider. Mr. Lawson was also a Co-Founder of Augme Mobile, an integrated mobile marketing technology platform. Mr. Lawson structured and effectuated the sale of Augme to publicly-traded Modavox, Inc. Following the sale, Mr. Lawson joined the acquiring company (renamed Augme Technologies, Inc.) where he served as its General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer for the 12-month period following the acquisition. Prior to becoming involved in forming and operating new technology ventures, Mr. Lawson practiced business law as a Partner in the Washington, D.C. office of the law firm McDermott, Will & Emery, LLP, focusing on financial services and healthcare enterprises. Prior to that, Mr. Lawson was an Associate in the Chicago office of Sonnenschein, Nath & Rosenthal in the firm's Executive Compensation & Employee Benefits practice, and before that he was an Associate in the Chicago office of Ross & Hardies, LLP (now McGuire Woods, LLP) in the firm's Labor & Employment practice. Given Mr. Lawson's history with Legacy AdTheorent, including serving in the roles of Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, General Counsel, Managing Partner and Chief Legal Officer, as well as his experience serving as a member of its board of directors as well as his other board service and executive-level management roles, we believe that Mr. Lawson is uniquely qualified to serve as a member of our Board.

Patrick Elliott is currently Chief Financial Officer of AdTheorent and has been in that role since January 2023. Prior to joining the AdTheorent and since December 2021, Mr. Elliott has served as Senior Vice President of

Finance at Skillsoft Corp, an educational technology company. Mr. Elliott previously served as Vice President at Maxar Technologies a space technology and intelligence company, from October 2012 to December 2021. Mr. Elliott was an equity analyst at Ivory Capital from 2006 to 2012 and began his career in public accounting at Ernst and Young LLP from 2004 until 2006. Mr. Elliott holds a Bachelor of Arts from the University of California, Berkeley.

William Todd is currently Chief Revenue Officer of AdTheorent and has been in that role since January 2019. Prior to this, Mr. Todd worked at Conversant Media (formerly known as ValueClick) from May 2001 until December 2018, where he held multiple leadership positions. These positions include: Executive Vice President (December 2014 – December 2018), President (January 2012 – November 2014), General Manager (October 2008 – December 2011), Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing (January 2004 – September 2008), and Vice President of Sales (May 2001 – December 2003). Mr. Todd holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management from St. John's University.

Andrew L. Anderson is currently Chief Technology Officer of AdTheorent and has been in that role since joining Legacy AdTheorent in January 2018. Prior to his current role, Mr. Anderson served as Senior Vice President of AdTheorent, Inc., one of our subsidiaries, from February 2017 to January 2018. Before this, Mr. Anderson served as Vice President of Platform Development at AdTheorent, Inc., from August 2014 to February 2017. Mr. Anderson holds a Bachelor's degree in Technology from University of North Florida.

Joshua Walsh is a co-founder of Legacy AdTheorent and since August 2022, Chief Innovation Officer of AdTheorent. Prior to his current role, Mr. Walsh served as a part-time advisor to the Company from February 2019 to August 2022, President of Media from January 2018 to February 2019, Chief Strategy Officer from February 2017 to January 2018, and Executive Vice President, Business Development from November 2014 to February 2017. Mr. Walsh holds a Bachelor's degree in Marketing from the Isenberg School of Management at the University of Massachusetts, Amherst.

Nominees for Election for Class II Directors—Terms Expiring at the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Vineet Mehra has served as a member of our board directors since December 2021. He is a business leader that has lived in and led diverse teams across North America, Europe, Asia and South America. Mr. Mehra currently serves as Chief Marketing Officer at Chime Financial, Inc., a position that he has held since May 2022. Prior to working at Chime, Mr. Mehra was Chief Growth, Product, and CX Officer at Good Eggs, from March 2021 to May 2022. From January 2019 to March 2021, Mr. Mehra was Global Chief Marketing Officer for Walgreens Boots Alliance, where he was responsible for laying out the vision and strategic direction for all of WBA's marketing activities. Before WBA, Mr. Mehra was Global Chief Marketing Officer for Ancestry.com, from 2017 to 2019. Prior to Ancestry, from 2013 to 2017, Mr. Mehra held leadership positions at Johnson & Johnson including Global President—Baby Care and Global President—Marketing Services. Mr. Mehra is also Board Chairman for Effie Worldwide's board of directors, elected in June 2019 and having been a member of the board of directors since April 2017. Mr. Mehra was named by Forbes as one of the world's Top 50 CMOs, recognized by AdWeek as one of the Top 20 Tech-Driven CMOs, honored with the Top 40 under 40 award by both Ad Age and P&G's Alumni Association, Chair of the Jury for the Global Media Awards, and an Invited Speaker at the Cannes Lions Festival of Creativity. Mr. Mehra's experience as an executive level manager and in leadership roles in a wide range of industries and business situations provide him with the valuable and relevant experience, qualifications, and skills to serve as a director on our board.

Zia Uddin has served as a member of our board of directors since December 2021. Mr. Uddin is currently President of Monroe Capital and is a member of Monroe Capital's various investment committees. Mr. Uddin joined Monroe Capital in 2007 and is portfolio manager of several institutional direct lending investment vehicles. Mr. Uddin also focuses on Monroe Capital's investments in software, technology and technology-enabled business services companies. He is also actively involved in Monroe Capital's growth equity and buyout investments, including SPACs. He works extensively with management, private equity sponsors and privately held owners of businesses. Mr. Uddin has experience as a member of the board of directors of several companies in a variety of industries. Mr. Uddin has approximately 30 years of private equity, management consulting, corporate finance, investing and turnaround experience at various firms. Mr. Uddin earned his M.B.A. from The University of Chicago Graduate School of Business and a B.S. from University of Illinois. He is a CFA charter holder and is a non-practicing CPA. Mr. Uddin's experience in private equity, management consulting, corporate finance and



investing and his experience serving on boards of directors of several companies in a variety of industries provides him with valuable and relevant experience in growth strategies, financing and management, and provides him with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Nominee for Election for Class II Director—New Nominee

Shuangxiu Yu has served as Vice President at H.I.G. Growth Partners responsible for sourcing, evaluating, executing, and monitoring investments since August 2022. From August 2020 until August 2022, Ms. Yu pursued her M.B.A. from the Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania. Before this, Ms. Yu worked for Comcast as a Corporate Development Manager, where she focused on investments and acquisitions across the technology, media and telecom sectors, from January 2017 until August 2020. Ms. Yu began her career at Bank of America Merrill Lynch, where she worked in investment banking from July 2014 until December 2016. Ms. Yu received her Bachelor of Arts in both International Relations and Economics from Mount Holyoke College.

Class III Directors Continuing in Office—Terms Expiring at the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

James Lawson (see biographical information above under "Management-Executive Officers")

Eric Tencer is a Managing Director at H.I.G. Growth Partners and has served on Legacy AdTheorent's Board since 2016. Mr. Tencer focuses on growth equity and buyout investments in SaaS software, internet & digital media and technology-enabled business services where he is responsible for sourcing, executing, and monitoring investments. In addition to serving on AdTheorent's Board, Mr. Tencer is currently a member of the Boards of Suzy, Inc. and AdTheorent's subsidiaries, AdTheorent Intermediate Holding Corporation, AdTheorent Acquisition Corporation, AdTheorent Canada, Inc., SymetryML Holdings, LLC, SymetryML, Inc., and SymetryML Canada Inc. Mr. Tencer has served on the Boards of Directors of Escalate since 2012, Boostability since August 2014, CDI-Troxell Majority Parent, LLC since August 2018, Eruptr since September 2018, CarltonOne since September 2019, and Suzy, Inc since July 2021. Previously, Mr. Tencer served on the Boards of Directors of Community Intervention Services from 2015 to 2021, Go2mobi from 2015 to 2020, Centerfield Media from 2015 to 2019, Just Home Healthcare Services from 2017 to 2019, and Integrity Nutraceuticals from 2014 to 2018. Prior to joining H.I.G. in April 2011, Mr. Tencer was a Principal with The Mustang Group, a private equity firm focused on leveraged buyouts and growth equity investments in business services, interactive media, consumer and manufacturing companies. Mr. Tencer began his career in investing at Arcadia Partners, a venture capital firm focused on education and training related business service companies. Mr. Tencer began his career at Bain & Company, where he helped lead initiatives for consumer, retail, healthcare and manufacturing businesses evaluating new product introductions, analyzing pricing programs, creating business unit growth plans, developing supply chain strategies and conducting due diligence for acquisitions. Mr. Tencer received his Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from Duke University and received an M.B.A. from Harvard Business School. Mr. Tencer's experience working with companies in a wide range of industries, including the software, digital media and technology-enabled business services sectors and knowledge of complex financial matters provides him with valuable and relevant experience in strategic planning, corporate finance, financial reporting, and leadership of complex organizations, providing him with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Kihara Kiarie has served as a member of our board directors since December 2021. He has spent the vast majority of his career in finance and private equity with over \$20 billion of direct principal investing experience and extensive corporate financial management responsibility with public and private companies. Mr. Kiarie is currently the Chief Financial Officer of Bloomberg Media, beginning in August 2021. Prior to Bloomberg, Mr. Kiarie was the Chief Financial Officer—Media at Geller & Company, from June 2020 to August 2021. Mr. Kiarie was the Chief Financial Officer of Revolt Media & TV. Mr. Kiarie is currently an independent board member of Somos, Inc. (fka SMS/800, Inc.), where he serves as the chairman of the Investment Committee, and also serves on the Audit Committee and Nomination and Governance Committee. Mr. Kiarie has been an independent board member of Somos, Inc. since 2015. Mr. Kiarie was a board member of Colad (Brazil) from 2018 to 2020. Mr. Kiarie was a board member of Josh Talks (India) in 2020. Mr. Kiarie earned a BA in Economics with high honors from Dartmouth College and an MBA from Harvard Business School where he was a Bert King Fellow. Mr. Kiarie's experience in finance and private equity, as well as in leadership roles in a wide range of industries,

provide him with the valuable and relevant experience, qualifications, and skills to serve as a director and make him a great asset to our board.

Class I Directors Continuing in Office—Terms Expiring at the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Danielle Qi is a Managing Director at H.I.G. Growth Partners and has served on Legacy AdTheorent's Board since December 2016. Ms. Qi has served as an investment professional at H.I.G. since July 2015, focusing primarily on the technology-enabled services, internet, media, and consumer sectors. In addition to serving on AdTheorent's Board, Ms. Qi is currently a member of the Board of AdTheorent's subsidiaries AdTheorent Intermediate Holding Corporation and AdTheorent Acquisition Corporation. Prior to joining H.I.G., Ms. Qi was with Alliance Holdings, a private equity firm focused on lower middle market companies in a wide range of industries. Previously, Ms. Qi co-founded Veritat Advisors, a financial advisory firm and technology platform acquired by LPL Financial. She began her career at McKinsey & Company, consulting to Fortune 500 companies in variety of industries, including financial services, health care, and media. Ms. Qi has served on the board of directors of Lulus Fashion Lounge Holdings, Inc. (Nasdaq: LVLU) since July 2015 and on the board of directors of Parachute Home, Cuyana and GLD since May 2021. Ms. Qi received a B.S. in Economics from the Wharton School and B.A. in History from the University of Pennsylvania and an M.B.A. from the Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University. Ms. Qi's experience working with companies in a wide range of industries, including the internet, consumer, media, and technology-enabled services sectors and knowledge of complex financial matters provides her with valuable and relevant experience in strategic planning, corporate finance, financial reporting, and leadership of complex organizations, and provides her with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

John Black has served as a member of our board of directors since December 2021. Most recently, he was a Senior Advisor with H.I.G. Capital, LLC following his role as the Head of H.I.G. Growth Equity, H.I.G. Capital's dedicated growth equity investment group, since he led its formation in 2010. Prior to his role as Head of H.I.G. Growth Equity, he was a Managing Director in H.I.G.'s lower middle market buyout funds, which he joined in 1996. Mr. Black served on the investment committees for funds in several of H.I.G.'s investment strategies, including growth equity and lower middle market buyouts, and H.I.G. Realty Partners, the firm's real estate investment platform, since its inception. Mr. Black opened the firm's Boston office in 2002. During his tenure at H.I.G., Mr. Black played senior roles in many of the firm's investments in a wide range of industries, including e-commerce, technology, software, digital adtech, media, healthcare, consumer, and business service companies. Prior to H.I.G., Mr. Black was a senior professional with several leading firms working with lower middle market businesses to identify and implement operational initiatives to enable the businesses to realize their full growth potential. Mr. Black has held several executive level management positions, including Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Black began his career in the Corporate Finance Group at Ernst & Young. Mr. Black received his Bachelor of Arts in Applied Mathematics from Harvard University. Mr. Black serves on the Board of Lulus Fashion Lounge Holdings, Inc. (Nasdaq: LVLU) where he serves on its Audit Committee and is the Chair of its Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

Ben Tatta has served as a member of our board directors since December 2021. He is an accomplished media executive with over 25 years of experience in all facets of media including content/programming, advertising, sales, marketing, technology, data, measurement and analytics. In his current role as President of Standard Media Index ("SMI"), which he has held since July 2020, Mr. Tatta has full operational and profit and loss responsibility for the company in addition to leading growth initiatives and strategic partnerships. Prior to SMI, he was co-founder and President of advanced TV analytics firm 605, where he was instrumental in both the formation and growth of the company into one of the top media analytics and attribution companies in the industry, from June 2016 to November 2019. Prior to 605, Ben served as President of the media division of Cablevision Systems Corporation from March 2006 to June 2016, driving unprecedented growth through the first system-wide deployment of addressable advertising and launch of advanced audience measurement and analytics capabilities. Prior to Cablevision, Mr. Tatta held senior leadership positions at several blue-chip companies including USA Networks/IAC, ABC, IBM, Lagardere, and GSI Commerce/eBay. Mr. Tatta has been a board member of Glidr since June 2019. He received a B.A. in Economics from Villanova University. Mr. Tatta's experience as a media executive and broad range of leadership roles provide him with the valuable and relevant experience, qualifications, and skills to serve as a director on our board.

Board Composition

Our Board directs our business and affairs, as provided by Delaware law, and conducts its business through meetings of the Board and its standing committees.

Our Board consists of nine members. Eric Tencer serves as Chairperson of our Board. The primary responsibilities of our Board will be to provide oversight, strategic guidance, counseling and direction to our management team. Our Board meets on a regular basis and additionally as required. In 2022, our Board met six times, our Audit Committee met seven times, our Compensation Committee met five times, and our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met five times.

Our Charter provides that our Board shall be divided into three classes with only one class of directors being elected in each year and each class (except for those directors appointed prior to our first annual general meeting) serving a three-year term. The term of office of the first class of directors, consisting of Ben Tatta, John Black and Danielle Qi, will expire at the 2025 annual general meeting. The term of the second class of directors, consisting of Vineet Mehra, Richard Boghosian, and Zia Uddin, will expire at this Annual Meeting. The term of office of the third class of directors, consisting of Kihara Kiarie, Eric Tencer and James Lawson, will expire at the 2024 annual general meetings of stockholders. For our 2022 annual meeting of stockholders, James Lawson, Eric Tencer, Richard Boghosian, Danielle Qi, John Black, Kihara Kiari and Zia Uddin were in attendance.

Family Relationships

There are no family relationships between any of our executive officers and directors.

Independence of Directors

The Nasdaq listing standards generally define an "independent director" as a person, other than an executive officer of a company or any other individual having a relationship which, in the opinion of the issuer's Board, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. We have determined that Ben Tatta, John Black, Danielle Qi, Vineet Mehra, Shuangxiu Yu, Zia Uddin, Kihara Kiarie and Eric Tencer are independent directors of the Company. The Company's independent directors shall have regularly scheduled meetings at which only independent directors are present.

Business Combination

On December 22, 2021 (the "Closing Date"), MCAP Acquisition Corporation ("MCAP"), now known as AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc., consummated the previously announced business combination pursuant to that certain Business Combination Agreement, dated as of July 27, 2021 (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified, the "Business Combination Agreement"), by and among MCAP, GRNT Merger Sub 1 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Merger Sub 1"), GRNT Merger Sub 2 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Merger Sub 2"), GRNT Merger Sub 3 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Merger Sub 3"), GRNT Merger Sub 4 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Merger Sub 4" and, together with Merger Sub 1, Merger Sub 2 and Merger Sub 3, the "Merger Sub Entities"), H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent Intermediate, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Blocker"), H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and AdTheorent Holding Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Legacy AdTheorent"). Pursuant to the terms of the Business Combination Agreement, Legacy AdTheorent, the Blocker and the Merger Sub Entities engaged in a series of four mergers, which resulted in Legacy AdTheorent becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of MCAP (the "Business Combination"). On the Closing Date, and in connection with the closing of the Business Combination, MCAP changed its name to AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc.

Our current Board was appointed and committees were established in connection with the Business Combination in December 2021. Following the Business Combination, our Board and committees did not hold any meetings in 2021. Our directors are encouraged to attend all annual and special meetings of our stockholders.



Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight

Our Board recognizes that the leadership structure and combination or separation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman roles is driven by our needs at any point in time. As a result, no policy exists requiring combination or separation of leadership roles, and our governing documents do not mandate a particular structure. This allows our Board the flexibility to establish the most appropriate structure for the Company any given time.

Our Board oversees the risk management activities designed and implemented by our management. Our Board does not have a standing risk management committee, but rather anticipates executing its oversight responsibility both directly and through its standing committees. Our Board also will consider specific risk topics, including risks associated with our strategic initiatives, business plans, and capital structure. Our management, including our executive officers, are primarily responsible for managing the risks associated with operation and business of the Company and providing appropriate updates to the Board and the Audit Committee. Our Board has delegated to the Audit Committee oversight of our risk management process, and our other board committees also consider risks as they perform their respective committee responsibilities. The scope of each committee's risk oversight responsibility is set forth below:

- The Audit Committee reviews our policies and guidelines with respect to risk assessment and risk management. The Audit Committee oversees our major financial risk exposures, including related to internal controls and cybersecurity, as well as the steps management has taken to monitor and control those exposures. This review includes regular assessments of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures to assure that current practices account for material risks facing the Company. The Audit Committee and the management team meet quarterly, and more frequently as needed, to assess the Company's risk environment, its response to present risks, and its planned responses to future and anticipated risks.
- The Compensation Committee considers risk issues when establishing and administering our compensation program for executive officers and other key personnel. As part of its risk assessments, the Compensation Committee consults with Aon, an independent compensation consulting firm, to identify risks that may be associated with the Company's compensation programs.
- The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee oversees matters relating to the composition and organization of the Board and advises the Board on how its effectiveness can be improved by changes in its composition and organization.

All board committees will report to our Board as appropriate, including, but not limited to, when a matter rises to the level of a material or enterprise risk.

Board Committees of the Company's Board of Directors

Our Board has established an Audit Committee, a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and a Compensation Committee. In addition, from time to time, special committees may be established under the direction of our Board when necessary to address specific issues. Copies of each board committee's charter are posted on our website.

Audit Committee Information

Our Audit Committee consists of Kihara Kiarie, Ben Tatta, and Zia Uddin. Under Nasdaq Global Market listing standards and applicable SEC rules, we are required to have at least three members of the Audit Committee, all of whom must be independent. Kihara Kiarie, Ben Tatta, and Zia Uddin each meet the independent director standard under the Nasdaq Global Market listing standards and under Rule 10A-3(b)(1) of the Exchange Act, and Kihara Kiarie will serve as chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Each member of the Audit Committee is financially literate, and our Board has determined that Kihara Kiarie qualifies as an "Audit Committee financial expert" as defined in applicable SEC rules.

Our Board has adopted an Audit Committee charter, which details the principal functions of the Audit Committee, including:

 the appointment, compensation, retention, replacement, and oversight of the work of the independent auditors and any other independent registered public accounting firm engaged by the Company;

- pre-approving all audit and permitted non-audit services to be provided by the independent auditors or any other registered public accounting firm engaged by the Company, and establishing pre-approval policies and procedures;
- reviewing and discussing with the independent auditors all relationships the auditors have with the Company in order to evaluate their continued independence;
- setting clear hiring policies for employees or former employees of the independent auditors;
- setting clear policies for audit partner rotation in compliance with applicable laws and regulations obtaining and reviewing a report, at least annually, from the independent auditors describing (i) the independent auditor's internal quality-control procedures and (ii) any material issues raised by the most recent internal quality-control review, or peer review, of the audit firm, or by any inquiry or investigation by governmental or professional authorities within the preceding five years respecting one or more independent audits carried out by the firm and any steps taken to deal with such issues;
- reviewing and approving any related party transaction required to be disclosed pursuant to Item 404 of Regulation S-K promulgated by
 the SEC prior to the Company entering into such transaction; and reviewing with management, the independent auditors, and our legal
 advisors, as appropriate, any legal, regulatory or compliance matters, including any correspondence with regulators or government
 agencies and any employee complaints or published reports that raise material issues regarding the financial statements or accounting
 policies of AdTheorent and any significant changes in accounting standards or rules promulgated by the Financial Accounting
 Standards Board, the SEC or other regulatory authorities.

Compensation Committee Information

Ben Tatta and Eric Tencer serve as members of our Compensation Committee. Under the Nasdaq Global Market listing standards and applicable SEC rules, our Compensation Committee must consist of all independent members. Ben Tatta and Eric Tencer meet the independent director standard under the Nasdaq Global Market listing standards, and Eric Tencer will serve as chairperson of the Compensation Committee.

Our Board has adopted a Compensation Committee charter, which details the principal functions of the Compensation Committee, including:

- reviewing and approving on an annual basis the corporate goals and objectives relevant to our Chief Executive Officer's compensation, evaluating our Chief Executive Officer's performance in light of such goals and objectives and determining and approving the remuneration (if any) of our Chief Executive Officer based on such evaluation;
- reviewing and approving on an annual basis the compensation of our other officers;
- reviewing on an annual basis our executive compensation policies and plans;
- implementing and administering our incentive compensation equity-based remuneration plans;
- assisting management in complying with our proxy statement and annual report disclosure requirements;
- if required, producing a report on executive compensation to be included in our annual proxy statement; and
- reviewing, evaluating and recommending changes, if appropriate, to the remuneration for directors.

The charter also provides that the Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, retain or obtain the advice of a compensation consultant, legal counsel or other adviser and will be directly responsible for the appointment, compensation and oversight of the work of any such adviser. However, before engaging or receiving advice from a compensation consultant, external legal counsel or any other adviser, the Compensation Committee will consider the independence of each such adviser, including the factors required by the Nasdaq Global Market and the SEC.

To assist the Compensation Committee in meeting its responsibilities, the committee engaged Aon as its independent outside compensation consultant to regularly provide executive compensation market analysis and insight, with respect to our executive officers. Aon only provides services to the Compensation Committee with respect to executive and director compensation and does not provide any other services to the company. The Compensation Committee has reviewed its relationship with Aon in light of the independence factors set forth in



applicable Nasdaq rules and concluded that its retention of Aon as its compensation consultant does not raise any conflict.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Information

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consists of Vineet Mehra and John Black. Under the Nasdaq Global Market listing standards and applicable SEC rules, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee must consist of all independent members. Vineet Mehra and John Black meet the independent director standard under the Nasdaq Global Market listing standards, and John Black will serve as chairperson of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

The primary purposes of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is to assist the Board in:

- identifying, screening and reviewing individuals qualified to serve as directors and recommending to the Board candidates for nomination for election at the annual meeting of stockholders or to fill vacancies on the Board;
- developing, recommending to the Board and overseeing implementation of our corporate governance guidelines;
- coordinating and overseeing the annual self-evaluation of the Board, its committees, individual directors and management in the governance
 of the company; and
- viewing on a regular basis our overall corporate governance and recommending improvements as and when necessary.

Guidelines for Selecting Director Nominees

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will recommend to the Board candidates for nomination for election at the annual meeting of the stockholders. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall also have the power and authority to consider recommendations for Board nominees and proposals submitted by our stockholders pursuant to the procedures described in our Bylaws or proxy statement for an annual meeting of stockholders of the Company. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may establish any policies, requirements, criteria and procedures, including policies and procedures to facilitate stockholder communications with the Board, to recommend to the Board appropriate action on any such proposal or recommendation and to make any disclosures required by applicable laws, regulations and rules in the course of exercising its authority.

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will recommend to the Board candidates for nomination who have a high level of personal and professional integrity, strong ethics and values and the ability to make mature business judgments. In general, in identifying and evaluating nominees for director, our Board considers experience in corporate management such as serving as an officer or former officer of a publicly held company, experience as a board member of another publicly held company, professional and academic experience relevant to our business, leadership skills, experience in finance and accounting or executive compensation practices, whether candidate has the time required for preparation, participation and attendance at Board meetings and committee meetings, if applicable, independence and the ability to represent the best interests of our stockholders.

In addition, our Board and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider a candidate's diversity of gender, race, ethnicity, age sexual orientation and gender identity. Our corporate governance guidelines specifically denote that no nominee to our Board will be discriminated against on the basis of race, gender, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation disability or any other basis proscribed by law.

Board Diversity

In August 2021, the SEC approved a Nasdaq Stock Market proposal to adopt new listing rules relating to board diversity and disclosure. As approved by the SEC, the new Nasdaq listing rules require all Nasdaq listed companies to disclose consistent, transparent diversity statistics regarding their boards of directors. The Board Diversity Matrix below presents the Board's diversity statistics in the format prescribed by the Nasdaq rules.



Board Diversity Matrix (As of April [•], 2023)

| | | 9 | |
|--------|--|--|--|
| Female | Male | Non-Binary | Did Not Disclose Gender |
| | | | |
| 2 | 7 | 0 | 0 |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 1 | 2 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 4 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| | 2 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 | 2 7 0 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 1 2 0 0 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 | Female Male Non-Binary 2 7 0 2 7 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |

Board's and Management's Role in Oversight of Environmental, Social and Governance Matters

We believe that a sustainable business strategy that integrates environmental, social and governance ("ESG") considerations is important to creating long-term value for our stockholders and other stakeholders. We have a long history of integrating ESG considerations into our mission, business strategy, and operations, and considering the impact we have on our communities. We are focused on addressing these issues, both risks and opportunities, through our corporate strategy. By operating our advertising platforms in a responsible manner, engaging and developing our diverse workforce, and reducing our environmental impact by operating efficiently, we aim to provide more sustainable products and services that deliver long-term value for our clients, employees, communities, investors, and other stakeholders.

Since the Company's last annual meeting of stockholders on May 25, 2022, we have taken several important steps to advance our ESG strategy, including establishing an internal steering committee comprised of Board and Management members to lead the development and implementation of our ESG strategy and program ("ESG Steering Committee"). We have also evaluated our core ESG priorities and identified important operational and strategic opportunities which allow AdTheorent to provide important leadership in the programmatic advertising industry, including but not limited to the following areas:

- AdTheorent's privacy-forward core digital ad-targeting methods and processes which are premised on statistics and machine learning to score advertising impressions, rather than exploitative user profiling practices that encroach on user privacy rights but are prevalent in digital marketing and advertising.
- AdTheorent's use of data science and machine learning to reduce inefficiencies in the programmatic marketplace, including active management of infrastructure and biddable impression request queries. AdTheorent actively monitors infrastructure usage to make the company's technical footprint most efficient. By attributing our infrastructure usage to each functional area of the platform, we are able to finely tune and optimize that infrastructure to the specific functional purposes. Additionally, our Cloud hosting partner has the ambitious goal of fully powering its infrastructure by renewable energy by 2025. As of January 2022, 95% of the infrastructure we leveraged was powered by renewable energy.
- AdTheorent's approach to supply path optimization is designed for efficiency in terms of both cost and infrastructure usage, leveraging a multi-pronged approach to ensure that our programmatic supply is efficient. We work directly with our over 20 supply side platform partners to ensure that any inventory sent to our demand side platforms generally matches our demand. For example, we throttle down international inventory in countries where our presence is lighter, as well as certain creative sizes that we do not run against. Additionally, we continuously analyze signals in the bid request that indicate whether the impression opportunity being sent is directly from the publisher, or whether that impression opportunity is going through multiple different intermediaries. Our machine learning models evaluate on an ongoing basis the optimal and most efficient path to an impression, ultimately ensuring that we are only delivering impressions that are most likely to lead to a client's business outcome, using the minimum infrastructure footprint necessary for the job.

AdTheorent's prioritization of action-oriented contributions to the community, including through corporate volunteering and pro bono campaigns pursuant to which we deploy our award-winning technology, offerings and media dollars to support and promote important humanitarian causes, including through our partnership with Ad Council, and including important pro bono media campaigns such as: "Love has No Labels" (equality), "Belonging Begins with Us" (inclusion), "Finish Your Diploma" (education), "Diabetes Prevention," and many more.

ESG Leadership & Oversight

Both the Board and Management are actively engaged in the Company's ESG strategy. The Board has embraced the responsibility for overseeing our ESG programs and has had robust discussions covering a variety of ESG issues throughout the past year.

Earlier this year we formalized our internal ESG Steering Committee. This committee consists of senior leaders across the organization representing key business areas, including legal, marketing, human resources and others. The ESG Steering Committee is responsible for developing and overseeing the implementation of AdTheorent's ESG strategy and related programs, and for providing regular updates to Management and the Board of Directors.

We believe that integrating relevant ESG considerations into our long-term business strategy is important to delivering on our commitments to our stakeholders. We will continue to engage with our investors and other stakeholders to understand their ESG priorities, and we welcome stockholder perspectives and feedback on our ESG strategy.

For more information about AdTheorent's ongoing efforts to improve the communities in which we work, please visit our ESG website at: https://www.adtheorent.com/AT-for-good.

Communication with the Company's Board of Directors

Stockholders or other interested parties wishing to communicate with our Board of Directors can communicate with our Board of Directors by writing to: c/o AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc., 330 Hudson Street, 13th Floor, New York, NY 10013, Attn: Secretary. Your message will not be screened or edited before it is delivered to the Secretary. The Secretary will determine whether to relay your message to other Board members.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our code of business conduct and ethics, which applies to all executive officers, directors and employees, codifies the business and ethical principles that govern all aspects of our business. We will provide, without charge, upon request, copies of the code of business conduct and ethics. The code of business conduct and ethics is also available on our website.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires that our directors, executive officers, and greater than 10% stockholders file reports with the SEC relating to their initial beneficial ownership of our securities and any subsequent changes. These reports are commonly referred to as Form 3, Form 4 and Form 5 reports. They must also provide us with copies of the reports.

Based solely on a review of the copies of such forms in our possession, and on written representations from the reporting persons, we believe that all of these reporting persons complied with their filing requirements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of the members of our Compensation Committee has ever been an executive officer or employee of the Company. None of our executive officers currently serves, or has served during the last completed fiscal year, as a

member of the Board or Compensation Committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving or will serve as a member of our Board or Compensation Committee.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This section presents the executive and director compensation of the Company and, where noted, the executive and director compensation of Legacy AdTheorent prior to the Business Combination.

To achieve our goals, we have designed, and intend to modify as necessary, our compensation and benefits program to attract, retain, incentivize and reward deeply talented and qualified executives who share our philosophy and desire to work toward achieving our goals.

We believe our compensation program should promote the success of the company and align executive incentives with the long-term interests of our equity holders. Our current compensation programs for our executive officers consist primarily of salary, annual bonuses, and equity awards. As our needs evolve, we intend to continue to evaluate our compensation philosophy and programs.

This section provides an overview of our executive compensation programs, including a narrative description of the material factors necessary to understand the information disclosed in the summary compensation table below.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, our named executive officers ("NEOs") were the following individuals:

- James Lawson, Chief Executive Officer
- William Todd, Chief Revenue Officer
- Charles Jordan, Former Chief Financial Officer*

*Mr. Jordan resigned from his position as Chief Financial Officer effective January 30, 2023 and Patrick Elliott was appointed to serve as Chief Financial Officer effective January 30, 2023.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation of the named executive officers for the year ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022.

| Name and Principal Position | Year | Salary (\$) | Bonus (\$) (1) | Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensati on Option Awards (\$) (2) | All Other Compensati on (\$) (3) | Stock Awards (\$) (4) | Total (\$) |
|-----------------------------------|------|-------------|----------------|--|--|--------------------------|------------|
| James Lawson | 2021 | 450,000 | 2,250,000 | 322,500 | 11,600 | 2,895,833 | 5,929,933 |
| Chief Executive Officer | 2022 | 465,000 | | 363,115 | 12,200 | 2,801,110 | 3,641,425 |
| William Todd | 2021 | 360,000 | 325,000 | 320,760 | 11,600 | _ | 1,017,360 |
| Chief Revenue Officer | 2022 | 375,000 | — | 330,520 | 12,200 | 560,228 | 1,277,948 |
| Charles Jordan | 2021 | 327,500 | 450,000 | 180,000 | 11,600 | — | 969,100 |
| Former Chief Financial Officer | 2022 | 340,000 | _ | 156,178 | 12,200 | 455,187 | 963,565 |

(1) The amounts reported in the Bonus column reflect bonuses paid in connection with the closing of the Business Combination.

(2) The amounts reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column reflect bonuses earned by the NEOs under the annual bonus plan for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022.

(3) This amount reflects matching contributions made to the 401(k) profit sharing plan with respect to each named executive officer.



(4) The amount reported in the "Stock Awards" column reflects the aggregate grant date fair value of the RSUs granted to each executive, calculated in accordance with FASB ASC 718.

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the compensation program for our named executive officers consisted of base salary and incentive compensation as well as Restricted Stock Units("RSUs") granted on March 11, 2022.

Base Salary

We established base salaries for each of the named executive officers at a level that is commensurate with the executive's duties and authorities, contributions and prior experience.

Bonuses

In connection with the closing of the Business Combination, the Legacy AdTheorent board approved bonuses payable to the named executive officers as shown in the Summary Compensation Table.

2022 Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation

The amounts reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column reflect bonuses earned by the NEOs under the annual bonus plan for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the target annual bonuses for Messrs. Lawson, Todd and Jordan were \$372,000, \$356,000, and \$160,000, respectively. The performance metrics for the annual bonus for Mr. Lawson for the year ended December 31, 2022 consisted of (i) an EBITDA goal and (ii) a goal based on revenue generated by certain of the Company's business units. Mr. Todd and Mr. Jordan's performance metrics for the annual bonus for the year ended December 31, 2022 consisted of (x) an EBITDA goal and (y) a goal based on revenue from certain of the Company's business units. The attainment percentages for each NEO are shown in the table below.

| Name | Opportunity | | Percentage | | Amount | |
|----------------|-------------|---------|------------|----|---------|--|
| James Lawson | \$ | 372,000 | 97.6% | \$ | 363,115 | |
| William Todd | \$ | 356,000 | 92.8% | \$ | 330,520 | |
| Charles Jordan | \$ | 160,000 | 97.6% | \$ | 156,178 | |

Equity Compensation

Prior to the Business Combination, Legacy AdTheorent from time to time granted equity awards, in the form of options and restricted interest units, to its named executive officers, which are subject to time vesting conditions based on each of the named executive officer's continued service with Legacy AdTheorent or the attainment of performance goals. As of December 31, 2022, each of the named executive officer's held outstanding options to purchase shares of our Common Stock and other awards, as set forth in the "Outstanding Equity Awards Table" below. The material terms regarding each equity award in the "Outstanding Equity Awards Table," including the vesting schedule, are described in the corresponding footnotes. The award of restricted incentive units granted to Mr. Lawson on July 28, 2021 has a time-based vesting schedule, with 50% of the restricted interest units vesting on July 1, 2022 and the remaining 25% of these restricted interest units vest in three equal quarterly installments on January 1, 2023, April 1, 2023 and July 1, 2023, such that the restricted interest units will be fully vested on July 1, 2023.

On March 11, 2022, our Board of Directors approved the first annual equity incentive grants under the 2021 Plan. The Committee granted 292,697 RSUs and 292,697 performance-based units ("PSUs") to James Lawson, 47,564 RSUs and 47,563 PSUs to Charles Jordan, and 58,540 RSUs and 58,539 PSUs to William Todd.

The RSUs granted to each of Messrs. Lawson, Todd and Jordan will vest 25% annually over the four years from January 1, 2022, subject to continued employment on such vesting dates. Upon his resignation, Mr. Jordan forfeited the remaining 75% unvested RSUs of 35,673.

50% of the PSUs granted to each of Mr. Lawson and Mr. Jordan would have been earned based on the achievement by the Company of certain revenue milestones during the period of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 (the "Performance Period"). The remaining 50% of the PSUs granted to each of Mr. Lawson and Mr.

Jordan would have been earned based on achievement by the Company of certain Adjusted EBITDA milestones during the Performance Period.

If earned, the PSUs would vest, subject to continuous employment, according to the following schedule: (i) 25% will vest on the date performance achievement is determined by the Compensation Committee, which will be no later than March 31, 2023 and (ii) the remainder of the earned PSUs would vest in three equal installments on the first, second and third anniversaries of the last day of the Performance Period. In the event of a qualifying termination of employment, all earned but unvested PSUs would continue to vest in accordance with the vesting schedule described above. A qualifying termination of employment includes the executive's termination of employment by the Company without "cause" (each such term is defined in the Plan), a termination due to the executive's death or disability, or, in the case of Mr. Lawson, on a termination by the executive for "good reason" (as such term is defined in Mr. Lawson's employment agreement).

The Compensation Committee determined that the defined milestones had not been achieved, and the PSUs granted on March 11, 2022 were cancelled as of December 31, 2022.

Benefits and Perquisites

We provide benefits to our named executive officers on the same basis as provided to all of its employees, including health, dental and vision insurance; life insurance; accidental death and dismemberment insurance; short-and long-term disability insurance; and a tax-qualified Section 401(k) plan. We do not maintain any executive-specific benefit or perquisite programs.

Retirement Benefits

Our employees, including named executive officers participate in a tax-qualified Section 401(k) plan. We make a safe harbor matching contribution equal to 100% of a participant's salary deferrals that do not exceed 3% of the participant's compensation plus 50% of the salary deferrals between 3% and 5% of the participant's compensation and such matching contributions are fully vested. We do not provide our employees, including the named executive officers, with any other retirement benefits, including, but not limited to, other tax-qualified retirement plans, supplemental executive retirement plans or nonqualified deferred compensation plans.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2022 Year End

The following table presents information regarding outstanding equity awards held by the named executive officers as of December 31, 2022.

| | | Option Awards | | | Equity Incentiv | e Plan Awards |
|----------------|--------------|--|----------------------------------|---------------------------|--|---|
| Name | Grant Date | Number of Securities Underlying unexercised Options Exercisable (#) | Option Exercise Price (\$) | Option Expiration Date | Number of Unearned Shares, Units, or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (#) | Market Value of Unearned Shares, Units, or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (\$ (1)) |
| James Lawson | 10/1/2017 | 820,731 | 0.47 | 10/1/2027 | _ | _ |
| | 5/6/2019 | 945,794 | 0.74 | 5/6/2029 | — | — |
| | 7/28/2021(2) | — | — | | 102,549 | 170,231 |
| | 3/11/2022(3) | — | — | | 292,697 | 485,877 |
| | | | | | | |
| William Todd | 5/6/2019 | 570,641 | 0.74 | 5/6/2029 | — | — |
| | 3/11/2022(3) | _ | _ | | 58,540 | 97,176 |
| | | | | | | |
| Charles Jordan | 10/1/2017 | 112,548 | 0.47 | 10/1/2027 | _ | _ |
| | 2/15/2018 | 78,158 | 0.59 | 2/15/2028 | | _ |
| | 5/6/2019 | 78,158 | 0.74 | 5/6/2029 | _ | |
| | 3/11/2022(4) | _ | | | 47,564 | 78,956 |

- (1) Amounts are based on the closing price of our Common Stock on December 31, 2022, which was \$1.66.
- (2) The award of restricted incentive units granted to Mr. Lawson on July 28, 2021 has a time-based vesting schedule, with 50% of the restricted interest units vested on July 1, 2022 and the remaining 25% of these restricted interest units vest in three equal quarterly installments on January 1, 2023, April 1, 2023 and July 1, 2023, such that the restricted interest units will be fully vested on July 1, 2023.
- (3) The RSUs granted to each of Messrs. Lawson and Todd have a time-based vesting schedule and vest 25% annually over four years beginning January 1, 2023 subject to continued employment on such vesting dates.
- (4) The RSUs granted to each of Messrs. Lawson and Todd have a time-based vesting schedule and vest 25% annually over four years beginning January 1, 2023 subject to continued employment on such vesting dates. Upon resignation, Mr. Jordan forfeited the remaining 75% unvested RSUs of 35,673.

Agreements with Our Named Executive Officers

We have entered into agreements with each of our named executive officers and the details of such agreements are outlined below.

Agreement with James Lawson

On December 22, 2016, James Lawson entered into an employment agreement with Legacy AdTheorent and this agreement was subsequently amended on January 1, 2019 and January 1, 2021. The agreement had a two year term but provides for automatic one-year renewals unless either party gives notice of an intent not to renew the agreement. If Mr. Lawson's employment terminates due to his death or if we terminate his employment due to his permanent disability (as defined in the agreement), he is entitled to receive a prorated bonus for the calendar year in which the termination occurs and if he was employed as of the last day of a prior calendar year and the termination occurs prior to the date of the payment of the bonus for the prior year, he is entitled to receive the bonus that would have been payable had he remained employed through the payment date (collectively, the "Post- Termination Bonus"). If we terminate Mr. Lawson's employment agreement), he is entitled to receive (i) twelve months of base salary, (ii) the Post- Termination Bonus and (iii) continued group medical, dental and vision insurance for twelve months (provided that he pays the employee portion of such premiums), subject to his timely



execution and non-revocation of a general release of claims against us. The employment agreement also provides that for twelve months following his termination of employment, Mr. Lawson will not compete with us or our subsidiaries or affiliates, solicit officers from our employees or consultants, subsidiaries or affiliates, hire any person who was previously an AdTheorent officer or its subsidiaries or affiliates during the 180 days prior to such hire or solicit customers of us or its subsidiaries or affiliates.

Agreement with Bill Todd

On December 20, 2018, Bill Todd entered into an offer letter agreement with Legacy AdTheorent to serve as Chief Revenue Officer. Mr. Todd's agreement does not have a fixed term, provides for at-will employment and does not include a severance provision.

Agreements with Chuck Jordan

On May 1, 2017, Chuck Jordan entered into an offer letter agreement with Legacy AdTheorent to serve as SVP, Finance. Mr. Jordan's agreement does not have a fixed term, provides for at-will employment and does not include a severance provision.

In addition, in conjunction with Mr. Jordan's resignation from the Company effective January 30, 2023, the Company extended the period during which certain grants and bonus compensation may be paid to Mr. Jordan.

Mr. Jordan previously received three nonqualified grants under the AdTheorent Holding Company LLC Participant Interest Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2017, February 15, 2018, and May 6, 2019, respectively (collectively, the "Grants"). The Participant Interest Agreements require that any Grant exercise and corresponding payment take place on or before the date on which Mr. Jordan resigns from employment with the Company. As a separation benefit, the Company extended the period during which Mr. Jordan may exercise each of the Grants until January 31, 2024.

Mr. Jordan is a signatory to a Company-issued 2022 Executive Performance Bonus Policy related to 2022 Company performance, the terms of which require Mr. Jordan to be employed on the date of bonus payment. As a separation benefit, the Company agreed to waive this "employed upon payment" condition for Mr. Jordan to the extent any bonus is otherwise owed and payable to Mr. Jordan in due course.

Potential Post-Employment Payments

Except as discussed in "Agreement with our Named Executive Officers" above, we do not currently have any agreements, plans or arrangements which provide any NEO with payments upon termination, resignation, retirement or a Change in Control.

Board Member Compensation

During the year ended December 31, 2021, no member of Legacy AdTheorent, MCAP or AdTheorent's operating board received cash, equity or other compensation for service on the operating board or any committee thereof. Our policy is to reimburse board members for reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with attending board and committee meetings or performing other services in their capacities as board members. As of December 31, 2021, non-employee members of Legacy AdTheorent, MCAP or AdTheorent's operating board did not hold any outstanding options or other compensatory equity awards.

During the year ended December 31 2022, each Super Independent Director (as defined below) was paid an annual retainer of \$195,000, of which \$45,000 was paid in cash. The remaining \$150,000 was paid in the form of RSUs. Each Super Independent Director (as defined below) also received an initial one-time grant of RSUs in an amount equal to \$225,000. The RSUs are subject to vesting terms, including, for the initial grant, vesting in equal annual tranches over three years and, for the annual grants, cliff vesting after one year.

Mr. Kiarie, as the Chair of our Audit Committee, received an additional annual cash retainer of \$20,000 and Mr. Tatta, as a member of our Audit Committee, received an additional annual cash retainer of \$10,000. Messrs. Tatta and Mehra also received additional annual cash retainers of \$7,500 each for their membership on the Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, respectively.

The table below shows director compensation for the year ended December 31, 2022 by each non-employee director.

| Name | Fees Earned or Paid in Cash(\$) | Restricted Stock Awards (\$) | Total (\$) |
|-------------------|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|------------|
| Eric Tencer | | | |
| John Black | — | 34,291 | 34,291 |
| Richard Boghosian | — | — | — |
| Kihara Kiarie | 65,000 | 375,000 | 440,000 |
| Vineet Mehra | 52,500 | 375,000 | 427,500 |
| Danielle Qi | — | — | — |
| Ben Tatta | 62,500 | 375,000 | 437,500 |
| Zia Uddin | | | |

The table below shows the aggregate numbers of unvested restricted stock units awards held as of December 31, 2022 by each nonemployee director.

| | Name | Unvested Restricted Stock |
|-------------------|------|----------------------------------|
| Eric Tencer | | |
| John Black | | 16,464 |
| Richard Boghosian | | — |
| Kihara Kiarie | | 54,881 |
| Vineet Mehra | | 54,881 |
| Danielle Qi | | — |
| Ben Tatta | | 54,881 |
| Zia Uddin | | _ |

2017 Interest Option Plan

Legacy AdTheorent's operating board previously adopted the AdTheorent Holding Company, LLC 2017 Interest Option Plan (the "2017 Plan"), the material terms of which are summarized below. As of December 31, 2022, options to purchase 6,915,715 shares of our Common Stock granted pursuant to the 2017 Plan remained outstanding with a weighted-average exercise price of \$0.61 per share and 310,891 restricted stock units with respect to our Common Stock were outstanding. Following the consummation of the Business Combination, no new awards will be granted under the 2017 Plan. As of March 27, 2023, 330,042 underlying common shares, adjusted by the Exchange Ratio, were available for grant under the 2017 Plan.

Awards. The 2017 Plan provided for the grant of options and restricted interest units to AdTheorent's managers, executive officers, other key employees or consultants of AdTheorent and its subsidiaries.

Authorized Shares. After the 2021 Long-Term Plan became effective, no additional awards were made pursuant to the 2017 Plan.

Plan Administration. Our board, or a duly authorized committee thereof administers the 2017 Plan. Subject to the provisions of the 2017 Plan, the administrator has the power to administer the 2017 Plan and make all determinations deemed necessary or advisable for administering the 2017 Plan, including, but not limited to, the power to determine the limitations, restrictions and conditions on awards previously granted under the 2017 Plan, and construe and interpret the terms of the 2017 Plan and awards granted thereunder.

Options. Options granted under the 2017 Plan will vest at the rate specified in the award agreement as determined by the administrator. The administrator determined the term of options granted under the 2017 Plan, up to a maximum of 10 years. Payment of the exercise price for the purchase of shares of our Common Stock issued upon the exercise of an option will be made in cash (including check), or, in the discretion of the administrator, by delivery of a promissory note or other property or by cashless exercise.

Restricted Interest Units. Restricted interest units are bookkeeping entries representing an amount equal to the fair market value of one share of our Common Stock. No cash consideration is required from the recipient upon the grant of a restricted interest unit. The administrator established the terms and conditions of the restricted interest unit



award, including the vesting and settlement terms and unless otherwise specified in an award agreement, an unvested restricted interest unit will be forfeited upon the participant's termination of employment. A vested restricted interest unit may be settled by cash, delivery of shares of our Common Stock, or a combination thereof.

Non-Transferability of Awards. Unless otherwise provide by the administrator in an award agreement and the operating agreement, awards granted under the 2017 Plan will not be transferable except by will or the laws of descent or distribution.

Changes to Capital Structure. In the event of a reorganization, recapitalization, unit dividend or units split, or combination or other change in our Common Stock, the administrator will make appropriate adjustments to (i) the number and type of shares subject to outstanding awards and (ii) the exercise price per share of each outstanding option.

Corporate Transaction. In the event of a corporate transaction (as defined in the 2017 Plan), the administrator may provide, in its discretion, that outstanding awards granted under the 2017 Plan will become vested and if applicable, exercisable by participants who are still employed or engaged by us or one of our subsidiaries and that such awards will terminate if not exercised or settled as of the date of the corporate transaction or other prescribed time. The administrator may also provide for the assumption or substitution of outstanding awards by the acquiring entity (or parent thereof) or provide for "rollover" treatment in connection with the corporate transaction, provided that such assumption, substitution or rollover is permissible under Sections 409A or 424 of the Code, to the extent applicable.

Plan Amendment or Termination. The administrator has the authority to suspend, or terminate the 2017 Plan at any time, and the administrator may also amend the 2017 Plan at any time, provided that member approval of an amendment is required to the extent required by law, agreement or any exchange upon which our Common Stock is listed.

2021 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Purpose. The 2021 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "2021 Long-Term Plan") became effective upon the date of the closing of the Business Combination and its purpose is to attract and retain the best available personnel to ensure our success and accomplish our goals, to incentivize our employees, directors, and consultants with long- term equity-based compensation to align their interests with the interests of our stockholders and to promote the success of our business.

Awards. The 2021 Long-Term Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options, within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code ("ISOs"), to our employees and employees of our parent and subsidiary corporations, and for the grant of options which do not qualify as ISOs ("NSOs"), share appreciation rights, restricted or unrestricted share awards, restricted share unit awards ("RSUs"), deferred share units ("DSUs"), and dividend equivalent rights to our employees, directors and consultants and any of our affiliates' employees, directors and consultants. As of December 31, 2022, no options or other rights to purchase shares of our Common Stock had been granted pursuant to the 2021 Long-Term Plan.

Authorized Shares. Upon effectiveness, the maximum number of shares of our Common Stock that may be issued under our 2021 Long-Term Plan was 10,131,638 shares of our Common Stock. The number of shares of our Common Stock that will be reserved for issuance under the 2021 Long-Term Plan will automatically increase on January 1 of each year for a period of up to ten years, beginning on January 1, 2022 and continuing through January 1, 2031, by the lesser of (i) 5% of the total number of shares of our Common Stock outstanding on December 31 of the immediately preceding year, or (ii) such smaller number of shares of our Common Stock as is determined by our Board. However, before the date of any such increase, our Board may determine that that there will be no annual increase or that such increase will be less than the amount set forth in the preceding sentence. As such, on January 1, 2023, 4,348,415 shares were added to the total shares available for issuance under the 2021 Long-Term Plan. The maximum number of shares of our Common Stock that may be issued on the exercise of ISOs under our 2021 Long-Term Plan is 10,131,638 shares, subject to adjustment as provided in the 2021 Long-Term Plan. Shares issuable pursuant to the 2021 Long-Term Plan may be authorized, but unissued, or reacquired shares of our Common Stock. As of March 27, 2023, 12,078,400 shares remained available for issuance.

Plan Administration. Our Board, or a duly authorized committee of our Board, administers our 2021 Long-Term Plan. Our Board may delegate to one or more of our officers the authority to grant awards (to eligible persons other than themselves) based on forms approved by the administrator. Subject to the provisions of our 2021 Long-Term Plan, the administrator has the power to administer our 2021 Long-Term Plan and make all determinations deemed necessary or advisable for administering the 2021 Long-Term Plan, including, but not limited to, the power to construe and interpret the terms of our 2021 Long-Term Plan and awards granted thereunder. The 2021 Long-Term Plan provides that the administrator may not reprice underwater options, other than an adjustment to reflect certain changes to our capital structure as described below, or exchange such options for cash or another award, without stockholder approval.

Options. The administrator determines the exercise price for ISOs and NSOs, subject to the terms and conditions of our 2021 Long-Term Plan, except that the exercise price of an option will generally not be less than 100% of the fair market value of our Common Stock on the date of grant. Options granted under our 2021 Long-Term Plan will vest at the rate specified in the award agreement as determined by the administrator.

The administrator determines the term of options granted under our 2021 Long-Term Plan, up to a maximum of 10 years. Unless the terms of an optionholder's award agreement, or other written agreement between us and the recipient, provide otherwise, if an optionholder's service relationship with us or any of our affiliates ceases for any reason other than disability, death, or cause, the optionholder may generally exercise any vested options for a period of three months following the cessation of service. If an optionholder's service relationship with us or any of our affiliates ceases due to disability or death, the optionholder or a beneficiary may generally exercise any vested options for a period of 12 months following the cessation of service. In the event of a termination for cause, options generally terminate upon the termination date. In no event may an option be exercised beyond the expiration of its term.

Acceptable consideration for the purchase of Common Stock issued upon the exercise of an option is determined by the administrator and may include (i) cash or check; (ii) the tender of shares of our Common Stock previously owned by the optionholder; (iii) a net exercise of the option; (iv) a broker-assisted cashless exercise; (v) any combination of the foregoing methods; or (vi) any other form of legal consideration approved by the administrator.

Tax Limitations on ISOs. The aggregate fair market value, determined at the time of grant, of our Common Stock with respect to ISOs that are exercisable for the first time by an employee during any calendar year under all of our stock plans may not exceed \$100,000. Options or portions thereof that exceed such limit will generally be treated as NSOs. No ISO may be granted to any person who, at the time of the grant, owns or is deemed to own stock possessing more than 10% of our total combined voting power or that of any of our parent or subsidiary corporations (a "10% stockholder") unless (i) the option exercise price is at least 110% of the fair market value of the stock subject to the option on the date of grant; and (ii) the term of the ISO does not exceed five years from the date of grant.

Share Appreciation Rights. Share appreciation rights permit the participant to receive the appreciation in the fair market value of our Common Stock between the date of grant and the exercise date. The administrator determines the purchase price or strike price for a share appreciation right, which will not be less than 100% of the fair market value of our Common Stock on the date of grant. A share appreciation right granted under our 2021 Long-Term Plan will vest at the rate specified in the share appreciation right agreement as will be determined by the administrator. Upon exercise, the participant will be entitled to receive shares of our Common Stock or cash (or any combination thereof) in an amount equal to the product of (i) the number of shares for which the share appreciation right is being exercised, multiplied by (ii) the excess of the fair market value of our Common Stock on the date of grant.

The administrator determines the term of share appreciation rights granted under our 2021 Long-Term Plan, up to a maximum of 10 years. If a participant's service relationship with us or any of our affiliates ceases for any reason other than cause, disability, or death, the participant may generally exercise any vested share appreciation right for a period of three months following the cessation of service. If a participant's service relationship with us, or any of our affiliates, ceases due to disability or death, the participant or a beneficiary may generally exercise any vested share

appreciation right for a period of 12 months. In the event of a termination for cause, share appreciation rights generally terminate upon the termination date. In no event may a share appreciation right be exercised beyond the expiration of its term.

RSUs. RSUs are bookkeeping entries representing an amount equal to the fair market value of one share of our Common Stock and may be granted with or without the requirement for payment of cash or other consideration. The administrator may set vesting criteria based upon the achievement of divisional or company- wide, or individual goals (including, but not limited to, continued employment or service), or any other basis determined by the administrator in its discretion. An RSU may be settled by cash, delivery of shares, or a combination thereof. Except as otherwise provided in the applicable award agreement, or other written agreement between us and the recipient, RSUs that have not vested will be forfeited once the participant's continuous service ends for any reason.

Restricted Share Awards. Restricted share awards are grants of shares of our Common Stock that vest in accordance with the terms and conditions established by the administrator. Our 2021 Long-Term Plan also permits the administrator to award shares which are fully vested to eligible service providers. Such share awards may be granted with or without the requirement for payment of cash or other consideration. The administrator determines the terms and conditions of restricted share awards, including vesting and forfeiture terms. Participants holding restricted shares generally will have voting rights with respect to such shares upon grant without regard to vesting. If a participant's service relationship with us ends for any reason, we may receive any or all of the shares of Common Stock held by the participant that have not vested as of the date the participant terminates service with us through a forfeiture condition or a repurchase right.

DSUs. The administrator may grant DSUs to eligible persons and may also permit members of our Board or highly compensated employees to elect to forego the receipt of cash or other compensation (including shares deliverable upon the vesting of RSUs) to have us credit DSUs (to an internal 2021 Long-Term Plan account) with a fair market value of the shares or other compensation which is deferred, and may also grant DSUs to eligible service providers which are not related to a deferral of compensation. Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement, DSUs will be fully vested and will be paid to the participant (in the form of one share of our Common Stock for each DSU) in five substantially equal annual installments at the end of each of the five calendar years after the date that the participant terminates service with us and our affiliates. However, if permitted by the administrator, the DSU will be settled at such time or times elected by a participant in his or her DSU election form.

Dividend Equivalents. The administrator may grant dividend equivalent awards to participants who have awards pursuant to the 2021 Long-Term Plan (other than options and share appreciation rights) which give the holders thereof the right to receive payments equivalent to cash dividends declared during the term of the dividend equivalent right with respect to the number of shares subject to such award and will be subject to such terms and conditions as determined by the administrator.

Non-Transferability of Awards. Unless the administrator provides otherwise, awards granted under the 2021 Long-Term Plan are not transferable except by will or the laws of descent and distribution. To the extent that the administrator provides in the award agreement, an NSO, a share appreciation right (which is settled in shares) or restricted shares may be transferred to an immediate family member, a trust or other entity in which the award will be passed to the participant's beneficiaries or by gift to a charitable institution. In addition, to the extent permitted in the award agreement, an option (both ISOs and NSOs), a share appreciation right (which is settled in shares) or restricted shares may transferred pursuant to a domestic relations order.

Changes to Capital Structure. In the event there is a specified type of change in our capital structure, such as a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, combination, recapitalization or reclassification of shares of our Common Stock, merger, consolidation, change in organization form, or any other increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of our Common Stock effected without receipt or payment of consideration by us, appropriate adjustments will be made to: (i) the class and maximum number of shares reserved for issuance under our 2021 Long-Term Plan; (ii) the class and maximum number of shares by which the share reserve may increase automatically each year; (iii) the class and maximum number of shares that may be issued on the exercise of ISOs; and (iv) the class and number of shares and exercise price, if applicable, of all outstanding awards granted under our 2021 Long-Term Plan.

Change in Control. In the event of a change in control (as defined in our 2021 Long-Term Plan), subject to the terms of a participant's award agreement or other employment-related agreement with us or one of our affiliates, any awards outstanding under our 2021 Long-Term Plan may be assumed or substituted for by any surviving or acquiring entity (or its parent or subsidiary). Instead of having outstanding awards assumed or substituted for, the administrator may, without obtaining the consent of any participant, take one or more of the following actions with respect to the outstanding awards (i) accelerate the vesting of some or all of the shares subject to the awards, (ii) provide for the payment of cash or other consideration to participants in exchange for the cancellation of the outstanding awards (based on the fair market value, on the date of the change in control, of the award being cancelled), (iii) terminate all or some of the awards upon the consummation of the change in control without payment of any consideration, or (iv) make such other modifications, adjustments or amendments to the outstanding awards or the 2021 Long-Term Plan as the administrator deems necessary or appropriate.

Plan Amendment or Termination. Our Board has the authority to amend or terminate our 2021 Long-Term Plan at any time, provided that such action does not materially impair the existing rights of any participant without such participant's written consent. We will also obtain the approval of our stockholders for amendments, including an amendment to increase the total number of shares issuable under our 2021 Long-Term Plan, to the extent required by applicable law and listing requirements. No ISOs may be granted after the tenth anniversary of the date that our Board adopts our 2021 Long-Term Plan. No awards may be granted under our 2021 Long-Term Plan while it is suspended or after it is terminated.

Recoupment. Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement, awards granted under the 2021 Long-Term Plan are subject to recoupment (or the administrator may require the termination or rescission of, or the recapture of proceeds related to, any award) if (i) the grant, vesting or payment of an award was based on an achievement of a financial result that was subsequently the subject of a material financial restatement, (ii) the participant either benefitted from a calculation that later proves to be materially inaccurate or engaged in fraud or misconduct that partially caused the need for a material financial restatement, (iii) a lower granting, vesting or payment of an award would have occurred based on the foregoing items (i) or (ii), or (iv) as required by applicable law or listing requirements. In general, this means that the administrator may, to the extent permitted by applicable law, require reimbursement or forfeiture to us of the value of the awards granted under the 2021 Long-Term Plan (whether cash-based or equity-based) to such participant received, to the extent that such value exceeds what the participant would have received based on an applicable restated performance measure or target. We will recoup such compensation to the extent required under the applicable rules, regulations and listing standards. In addition, awards granted pursuant to the 2021 Long-Term Plan and shares issued pursuant to such awards are subject to termination, rescission or recapture in the event that the participant materially violated an agreement with us or one of our affiliates, solicited any non-administrative employee to terminate his or her employment with us or one of our affiliates, solicited any non-administrative employee to terminate his or her employment with us, or the participant engaged in activities which were competitive or materially prejudicial to us during his or her service with us.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Purpose. The Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("2021 ESPP") became effective immediately prior to and contingent upon the closing of the Business Combination and its purpose is to secure the services of new employees, to retain the services of existing employees, and to provide incentives for such individuals to exert maximum efforts toward our success and that of our affiliates. The 2021 ESPP includes two components. One component is designed to allow eligible U.S. employees to purchase our Common Stock in a manner that may qualify for favorable tax treatment under Section 423 of the Code (the "423 Component") and accordingly, it will be construed in a manner that is consistent with the requirements of Section 423 of the Code. The other component will permit the grant of purchase rights that do not qualify for such favorable tax treatment (the "Non-423 Component") in order to allow deviations necessary to permit participation by eligible employees who are foreign nationals or employed outside of the U.S. while complying with applicable foreign laws and except as otherwise provided in the 2021 ESPP or determined by our Board, it will operate and be administered in the same manner as the 423 Component.

Share Reserve. The 2021 ESPP authorizes the issuance of 2,026,328 shares of our Common Stock under purchase rights granted to our employees or to employees of any of our designated affiliates. The number of shares of our Common Stock that will be reserved for issuance will automatically increase on January 1 of each year for a

period of ten years beginning on January 1, 2022 and ending on (and including) January 1, 2031, by the lesser of (i) 1% of the total number of shares of our Common Stock outstanding on December 31 of the immediately preceding year, (ii) 1,017,309 shares of our Common Stock, or (iii) such smaller number of shares of our Common Stock as is determined by our Board. However, before the date of any such increase, our Board may determine that that there will be no annual increase or that such increase will be less than the amount set forth in the preceding sentence. Pursuant to the ESPP, on January 1, 2023, the Company added 869,863 shares available for issuance. As of March 27, 2023, the Company had 2,784,758 shares available for issuance.

Administration. Our Board administers the 2021 ESPP and may delegate its authority to administer the 2021 ESPP to a committee of one or more members of our Board.

Offerings. The 2021 ESPP is implemented through a series of offerings under which eligible employees are granted purchase rights to purchase shares of our Common Stock on specified dates during such offerings. Under the 2021 ESPP, our Board is permitted to specify offerings with durations of not more than 27 months consisting of one or more purchase periods within each offering. Each offering will have one or more purchase dates on which shares of our Common Stock will be purchased for employees participating in the offering.

Eligibility. Generally, purchase rights may only be granted to employees, including executive officers, employed by us (or by any of our affiliates designated by our Board) on the first day of an offering if such employee has been employed by us or by one of our designated affiliates for such continuous period preceding such date (not to exceed two years) as our Board may require. Our Board may (unless prohibited by applicable law) require that employees have to satisfy one or both of the following service requirements with respect to the 423 Component: (i) being customarily employed for more than 20 hours per week; or (ii) being customarily employed for more than five months per calendar year. No employee will be eligible for the grant of any purchase rights under the 2021 ESPP if immediately after such rights are granted, such employee owns stock possessing five percent or more of the total combined voting power or value of all classes of our outstanding capital stock (or the stock of any parent or subsidiary corporation) determined in accordance with the rules of Section 424(d) of the Code. As specified by Section 423(b)(8) of the Code, no employee will be permitted to purchase shares under the 2021 ESPP at a rate in excess of \$25,000 worth of our Common Stock (based on the fair market value per share of our Common Stock on the date that the purchase right is granted) for each calendar year such purchase right is outstanding.

Purchase Rights; Purchase Price. On the first day of each offering, each eligible employee is granted a purchase right to purchase up to that number of shares purchasable either with a percentage or with a maximum dollar amount, as designated by our Board, which will not exceed 15% of his or her cash compensation, including, without limitation, regular and recurring straight time gross earnings, payments for overtime and shift premium, as well as cash payments for incentive compensation, bonuses and other similar compensation (unless otherwise specified by the administrator on a uniform and nondiscriminatory basis prior to the commencement of a specified offering). Each eligible employee may purchase of up to 4,500 shares of our Common Stock on each purchase date in an offering (or such lesser number of shares determined by our Board prior to the start of the offering). Our Board may also specify (i) a maximum number of shares that may be purchased by any participant on any purchase date during an offering, (ii) a maximum aggregate number of shares that may be purchased by all participants in an offering and/or (iii) a maximum aggregate number of shares that may be purchase date under an offering. If the aggregate number of shares issuable upon exercise of purchase rights would exceed any such maximum aggregate number, then, in the absence of any action by our Board otherwise, a pro rata allocation of the shares available, based on each participant's accumulated contributions, will be made in as nearly a uniform manner as will be practicable and equitable.

The purchase price of shares acquired pursuant to purchase rights is not less than the lesser of (i) 85% of the fair market value of a share of our Common Stock on the first day of an offering; or (ii) 85% of the fair market value of a share of our Common Stock on the date of purchase.

Participation; Withdrawal; Termination. An eligible employee may elect to participate in an offering and authorize payroll deductions as the means of making contributions by completing and delivering to us or our designee, within the time specified in the offering, an enrollment form provided by us or our designee. If permitted in the offering, a participant may thereafter reduce (including to zero) or increase his or her contributions.

A participant may cease making contributions and withdraw from the offering by delivering to us or our designee a withdrawal form provided us prior to any deadline before a purchase date that we may impose. Upon such withdrawal, such participant's purchase right in that offering will immediately terminate and we will distribute as soon as practicable to such participant all of his or her accumulated but unused contributions.

Purchase rights will terminate immediately if the participant either (i) is no longer an employee for any reason or for no reason (subject to any post-employment participation period required by applicable law) or (ii) is otherwise no longer eligible to participate. We will distribute the individual's accumulated but unused contributions as soon as practicable to such individual.

Purchase of Shares. On each purchase date, each participant's accumulated contributions are applied to the purchase of shares, up to the maximum number of shares permitted by the 2021 ESPP and the applicable offering, at the purchase price specified in the offering. Unless otherwise provided in the offering, if any amount of accumulated contributions remains in a participant's account after the purchase of shares on the final purchase date of an offering, then such remaining amount will not roll over to the next offering and will instead be distributed in full to such participant after the final purchase date of such offering without interest (unless otherwise required by applicable law).

Changes to Capital Structure. The 2021 ESPP provides that in the event of a change in our capital structure through actions such as a stock split, merger, consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization, reincorporation, stock dividend, dividend in property other than cash, large nonrecurring cash dividend, liquidating dividend, combination of shares, exchange of shares, change in corporate structure, or similar transaction, our Board will appropriately and proportionately adjust: (i) the class(es) and maximum number of shares subject to the 2021 ESPP; (ii) the class(es) and maximum number of shares by which the share reserve may increase automatically each year; (iii) the class(es) and number of shares subject to, and purchase price applicable to, outstanding offerings and purchase rights; and (iv) the class(es) and number of shares that are subject to purchase limits under each ongoing offering.

Corporate Transactions. The 2021 ESPP provides that in the event of a corporate transaction (as defined in our 2021 ESPP), any thenoutstanding rights to purchase our Common Stock under the 2021 ESPP may be assumed, continued, or substituted for by any surviving or acquiring corporation (or its parent company). If the surviving or acquiring corporation (or its parent company) elects not to assume, continue, or substitute for such purchase rights, then (i) the participants' accumulated payroll contributions will be used to purchase shares of our Common Stock within 10 business days before such corporate transaction, and such purchase rights will terminate immediately after such purchase, or (ii) our Board, in its discretion, may terminate outstanding offerings and purchase rights and refund the participants' accumulated contributions.

Transferability. During a participant's lifetime, purchase rights are exercisable only by a participant. Purchase rights are not transferable by a participant, except by will, by the laws of descent and distribution, or, if permitted by us, by a beneficiary designation.

Amendment, Suspension or Termination. Our Board has the authority to amend, suspend or terminate the 2021 ESPP, except in certain circumstances such amendment, suspension or termination may not materially impair any outstanding purchase rights without the holder's consent. Stockholder approval is required for any amendment to the 2021 ESPP if such approval is required by applicable law or listing requirements

Anti-Hedging Policy

Pursuant to our Insider Trading Policy, our directors and executives are prevented from engaging in hedging or monetization transactions (including but not limited to zero-cost collars, prepaid variable forwards, equity swaps, puts, calls, collars, forwards and other derivative instruments), as such transactions allow individuals to continue to own our securities without the full risks and rewards of ownership and as a result, not have the same objectives as other stockholders.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

As of December 31, 2022, there were 7,677,848 shares of Common Stock available for issuance under the 2021 Plan and 2,026,328 shares of Common Stock available for issuance under the 2021 ESPP, each of which our

stockholders approved on December 21, 2021 in connection with the Business Combination and became effective immediately upon the Closing.

The following table summarizes information about our equity compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements as of the end of our most recently completed fiscal year, or December 31, 2022:

| | Number of securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants, and rights (a) | exe outst | ghted-average ercise price of anding options, ants, and rights (b) | Number of securities remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans (excluding securities reflected in column (a) (c) |
|--|---|--------------|--|--|
| Equity compensation plans approved by security holders | | \$ | _ | 9,704,176 |
| Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders | 6,915,715 | \$ | 0.61 | _ |
| Total | 6,915,715 | \$ | 0.61 | 9,704,176 |

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The following includes a summary of transactions since January 1, 2021 to which we or Legacy AdTheorent have been a party in which the amount involved exceeded or will exceed \$120,000, and in which any of our directors, executive officers or, to our knowledge, beneficial owners of more than 5% of our capital stock or any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons had or will have a direct or indirect material interest, other than transactions that are described under the section *"Executive Compensation."* We also describe below certain other transactions with our directors, executive officers and stockholders.

Stockholders' Agreement

In connection with the Closing of the Business Combination, on December 22, 2021 (the "Closing Date") we entered into that certain Stockholders' Agreement (the "Stockholders' Agreement") with H.I.G. Growth— AdTheorent, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("H.I.G."), MCAP Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Sponsor"), and certain Legacy AdTheorent members (the "Stockholders") pursuant to which, among other things, we agreed to take all necessary action to ensure that (i) the Board will consist of nine members and (ii) the following persons shall be nominated for election to the Board at each annual or special meeting of our stockholders of the Company at which elections to the Board will be held:

- three (3) independent directors, which individuals shall initially be Messrs. Kiarie, Tatta and Mehra (collectively, the "Super Independent Directors") and shall thereafter be nominated by the Board (or any duly authorized committee thereof in accordance with the Charter, Bylaws, or other corporate governance documents of the Company); provided, that at least one of the Super Independent Directors must qualify as an "Audit Committee financial expert" within the meaning of U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-K;
- four (4) directors nominated by H.I.G., for so long as H.I.G. beneficially owns 20% or more of our Common Stock of the Company three (3) directors nominated by H.I.G., for so long as H.I.G. Beneficially Owns 15% or more (but less than 20%) of the outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company, two (2) directors nominated by H.I.G., for so long as H.I.G. Beneficially Owns 10% or more (but less than 15%) of the outstanding shares of Common Stock of the company, store (but less than 15%) of the outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company, and one (1) director nominated by H.I.G., for so long as H.I.G. beneficially owns 5% or more (but less than 10%) of the outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company;
- one (1) director nominated by the Sponsor for so long as the Sponsor and its affiliates beneficially own 1% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company; and
- one (1) director who shall be the individual serving as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the "CEO Director"), which individual shall initially be James Lawson.

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement

In connection with the Closing of the Business Combination, on the Closing Date we entered into an amended and restated registration rights agreement (the "Registration Rights Agreement") with certain MCAP stockholders (including the Sponsor) and certain Legacy AdTheorent members (such stockholders, the "Holders"), pursuant to which, among other things, the Holders are entitled to certain registration rights in respect of the registration such escurities under the Registration Rights Agreement. The Registration Rights Agreement also provides the Holders with "piggy-back" registration rights, subject to certain requirements and customary conditions.

Member Support Agreement

In connection with the execution of the Business Combination Agreement, MCAP, Legacy AdTheorent and certain Legacy AdTheorent members, who held a majority of Legacy AdTheorent's membership interests, entered into a Member Support Agreement, pursuant to which, among other things, the Legacy AdTheorent members agreed to vote in favor of the Business Combination Agreement, the Business Combination Agreement ("Transactions") at a meeting of Legacy AdTheorent members called to approve the Business Combination Agreement, the Business Combination, and Transactions (or to act by written consent approving the Business Combination Agreement, the Business Combination, and Transactions).

Indemnity Agreements

In connection with the Closing of the Business Combination, we entered into indemnity agreements (each, an "Indemnity Agreement") with each of our directors and executive officers. These Indemnity Agreements provide the directors and executive officers with contractual rights to indemnification and advancement for certain expenses, including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred by a director or executive officer in any action or proceeding arising out of their services as one of our directors or executive officers.

MCAP Related Person Transactions

Founder Shares

In December 2020, MCAP issued an aggregate of 7,187,500 Founder Shares to the Sponsor, which is controlled by Theodore L. Koenig, for an aggregate purchase price of \$25,000 in cash, or approximately \$0.003 per share. On February 25, 2021, MCAP effected a stock dividend, resulting in an aggregate 7,906,250 Founder Shares. The Founder Shares, after giving effect to the stock dividend, included an aggregate of up to 1,031,250 shares of MCAP common stock subject to forfeiture if the over-allotment option with respect to MCAP's initial public offering was not exercised by the underwriters in full. In connection with the underwriters' full exercise of their over-allotment option in March 2021, the 1,031,250 MCAP shares were no longer subject to forfeiture. Such MCAP shares had an aggregate market value of approximately \$78.6 million based on the last sale price of \$9.94 per share on Nasdaq on December 1, 2021.

In connection with the Business Combination, the Sponsor agreed not to transfer, assign or sell its Founder Shares until the earlier of (i) one year after the date of the consummation of the initial business combination or (ii) the date on which the closing price of our Common Stock equals or exceeds \$12.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30- trading day period commencing after the initial business combination, or earlier, in either case, if, subsequent to the initial business combination, the date the Company consummates a subsequent liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction which results in all of our stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of Common Stock for cash, securities or other property.

Private Warrants

The Sponsor purchased an aggregate of 5,983,333 Private Warrants, each exercisable for one share of MCAP common stock at \$11.50 per share, for a purchase price of \$8,975,000, or \$1.50 per warrant. Such warrants had an aggregate market value of approximately \$6.9 million based on the last sale price of \$1.16 per warrant on Nasdaq on December 1, 2021. MCAP's charter required MCAP to complete an initial business combination prior to March 2, 2023 (unless MCAP submits and its stockholders approve an extension of such date). Per the terms of the Business Combination Agreement, the Sponsor forfeited 551,096 Private Placement Warrants.

In December 2020, MCAP issued an unsecured promissory note to the Sponsor, pursuant to which MCAP could borrow up to an aggregate principal amount of \$300,000 to be used for a portion of the expenses of MCAP's initial public offering. This loan was non-interest bearing, unsecured and due at the earlier of June 30, 2021 or the closing of MCAP's initial public offering. The loan would be repaid upon the closing of MCAP's initial public offering out of the offering proceeds not held in the trust account. On March 2, 2021, the \$250,000 outstanding under the promissory note was repaid.

Subscription Agreements

Concurrently with the execution of the Business Combination Agreement, MCAP entered into subscription agreements with certain investors (the "PIPE Investors"), pursuant to which the PIPE Investors agreed to subscribe for and purchase, and MCAP agreed to issue and sell to the PIPE Investors, immediately prior to the Closing, an aggregate of 12,150,000 shares of common stock for a purchase price of \$10.00 per share, for aggregate gross proceeds of \$121.50 million. The shares issued to the PIPE Investors were issued pursuant to and in accordance with the exemption from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act") under Section 4(a)(2) and/or Regulation D promulgated thereunder.

Additional Related Party Transactions

Other than as described above, no compensation of any kind has been paid by MCAP, Legacy AdTheorent or the Company to the Sponsor, executive officers and directors, or any of their respective affiliates, for services rendered prior to or in connection with the completion of the Business Combination. However, these individuals have been or will be reimbursed for any out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with activities on MCAP's behalf such as identifying potential target businesses and performing due diligence on suitable business combinations. The Audit Committee has reviewed on a quarterly basis all payments that were made to the Sponsor, officers, directors or its or their affiliates.

All ongoing and future transactions between the Company and any of its officers and directors or their respective affiliates will be on terms believed by the Company to be no less favorable to it than are available from unaffiliated third parties. Such transactions will require prior approval by a majority of our uninterested "independent" directors or the members of our board who do not have an interest in the transaction, in either case who had access, at our expense, to our attorneys or independent legal counsel. We will not enter into any such transaction unless our disinterested "independent" directors determine that the terms of such transaction are no less favorable to the Company than those that would be available to the Company with respect to such a transaction from unaffiliated third parties.

Monroe Capital LLC

In addition, the Sponsor, its manager, certain of its members, and certain of MCAP's officers and directors are affiliated with Monroe Capital LLC. Affiliates of Monroe Capital LLC had issued debt to AdTheorent with outstanding principal amount of approximately \$24.4 million as of September 30, 2021, which debt was fully repaid by us in December 2021 as a condition to the closing of the Business Combination. Affiliates of Monroe Capital LLC also owned 1,250,000 shares in AdTheorent, representing 2.55% of the fully diluted equity ownership, prior to the closing of the Business Combination.

Legacy AdTheorent Related Person Transactions

Lock-up Agreement

Certain Legacy AdTheorent members that received shares of our Common Stock in the Business Combination have entered into a Lock-Up Agreement with Company, pursuant to which such members have agreed that, from the Closing Date until the 180th day after the Closing Date, they will not (subject to certain exceptions) sell, offer to sell, contract or agree to sell, hypothecate, pledge, grant any option to purchase or otherwise dispose of or agree to dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of Common Stock (including the shares of Common Stock issued or issuable upon the exercise of any other in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement).

Related Person Transactions Policy

Our Board has adopted a written Policy and Procedures With Respect to Related Person Transactions that sets forth the Company's policies and procedures regarding the identification, review, consideration and oversight of "related person transactions." For purposes of the Company's policy only, a "related person transaction" is a transaction, arrangement or relationship (or any series of similar transactions, arrangements or relationships) in which the Company or any of its subsidiaries are participants involving an amount that exceeds \$120,000, in which any "related person" has a material interest.

Transactions involving compensation for services provided to the Company as an employee, consultant or director will not be considered related person transactions under this policy. A "related person" is any executive officer, director, nominee to become a director or a holder of more than 5% of any class of the Company's voting securities, including any of their immediate family members and affiliates, including entities owned or controlled by such persons.

Under the policy, the related person in question or, in the case of transactions with a holder of more than 5% of any class of the Company's voting securities, information regarding the proposed related person transaction must be presented to the Company's Audit Committee for review.

The Company's Audit Committee will approve only those transactions that it determines are in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders.

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

The beneficial ownership percentages set forth in the table below are based on approximately 87,766,116 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding as of March 27, 2023.

- Each person who is known by the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent (5% of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock;
- each named executive officer and director of the Company; and
- all current executive officers and directors of the Company, as a group.

Beneficial ownership is determined according to the rules of the SEC, which generally provide that a person has beneficial ownership of a security if he, she, or it possesses sole or shared voting or investment power over that security, including options and warrants that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days.

Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes to the table below, and subject to applicable community property laws, the Company believes that all persons named in the table below have sole voting and investment power with respect to their beneficially owned shares of Common Stock.

| | Number of Shares of Common Stock | % | |
|--|-------------------------------------|---|-------|
| Name and Address of Beneficial Owner (1) | | | |
| Directors and Executive Officers: | | | |
| James Lawson (2) | 3,102,519 | | 3.5% |
| William Todd (3) | 578,602 | * | |
| Charles Jordan (4) | 275,838 | * | |
| Eric Tencer (5) | 34,064,174 | | 38.8% |
| Danielle Qi (5) | 34,064,174 | | 38.8% |
| Richard Boghosian | _ | * | |
| John Black | 16,464 | * | |
| Kihara Kiarie | 32,928 | * | |
| Vineet Mehra | 32,928 | * | |
| Ben Tatta | 32,928 | * | |
| Zia Uddin (6) | _ | * | |
| All directors and executive officers as a group (13 individuals) (7) | 6,468,344 | | 7.1% |
| Five Percent Holders: | | | |
| H.I.G. Growth - AdTheorent, LLC (8) | 34,064,174 | | 38.8% |
| Theodore L. Koenig (9) | 17,030,341 | | 19.4% |
| Hana Alternative Asset Management Co., Ltd. (10) | 8,000,000 | | 9.1% |
| MCAP Acquisition, LLC (11) | 7,873,250 | | 9.0% |
| Anthony Iacovone (12) | 5,849,234 | | 6.7% |
| Corbin Capital Partners, L.P. (13) | 5,219,666 | | 5.9% |

Less than 1%.

(1) Unless otherwise noted, the business address of each of the following individuals is 330 Hudson Street, 13th Floor, New York, New York 10013.

(2) Includes 1,766,525 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 27, 2023 and 34,183 shares of restricted stock units that will vest within 60 days of March 27, 2023.

- (3) Includes 570,641 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 27, 2023.
- (4) Includes 268,864 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 27, 2023.
- (5) H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC is the record holder of the shares reported herein. Mr. Tencer and Ms. Qi, as members of our Board, indirect members of H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC and agents of entities affiliated with H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC, may be deemed to share voting and investment power with regard to the shares held directly by H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC, but disclaim beneficial

ownership in the securities, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest in such securities. H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC is located at 1450 Brickell Avenue, 31st Floor, Miami, FL 33131.

- (6) Mr. Uddin holds economic interests in MCAP Acquisition, LLC and pecuniary interests in certain of the securities held by MCAP Acquisition, LLC. Mr. Uddin disclaims beneficial ownership of such securities except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.
- (7) Excludes 34,064,174 shares held by H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent LLC, which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Mr. Tencer and Ms. Qi (see related discussion in note (4) above). Includes 3,123,043 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 27, 2023 and 48,833 shares of restricted stock units that will vest within 60 days of March 27, 2023.
- (8) Based solely on a Schedule 13D filed on January 3, 2022. Includes 34,064,174 shares held by H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC. H.I.G.-GPII, Inc. is the sole managing member of H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC, and has sole voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares held by H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC. Sami Mnaymneh and Anthony Tamer, the directors of H.I.G.-GPII, Inc., have shared voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares held by H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC. Messrs. Mnaymneh and Tamer may be deemed to be indirect beneficial owners of the reported securities, but disclaim beneficial ownership in the securities, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest in such securities. The address of H.I.G. Growth—AdTheorent, LLC is 1450 Brickell Avenue, 31st Floor, Miami, FL 33131.
- (9) Based solely on a Schedule 13D/A filed on March 13, 2023. Interests include 7,873,250 shares and 5,432,237 warrants held by MCAP, Acquisition, LLC, and 3,724,854 shares acquired by funds ("Monroe Funds") managed by Monroe Capital, LLC and/or its affiliates ("Monroe") in their capacities as PIPE Investors. Mr. Koenig may be deemed to beneficially own (i) shares held by the Sponsor by virtue of his control over Monroe Capital Management Advisors, LLC, the manager of the Sponsor, and (ii) shares acquired by Monroe Funds by virtue of his position as Chief Executive Officer of Monroe, but Mr. Koenig disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares held by the Sponsor and the Monroe Funds, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein. Mr. Koenig's address is c/o Monroe Capital, LLC, 311 South Wacker Drive, Suite 6400, Chicago, Illinois 60606.
- (10) Based solely on a Schedule 13G filed on April 12, 2022. Consists of (i) 4,000,000 shares held by KB Securities Co., Ltd. (as trustee of Hana Alternative Investment Professional Private trust No. 175-1) ("KB 1") and (ii) 4,000,000 shares held by KB Securities Co., Ltd. (as trustee of Hana Alternative Investment Professional Private trust No. 175-2) ("KB 2"). Hana Alternative Asset Management Co., Ltd. is currently managing KB 1 and KB 2, and as such may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of the reported securities. The address of Hana Alternative Asset Management Co., Ltd. is 21F, 66, Eulji-ro, Jung-gu, Seoul, Republic of Korea.
- (11) Based solely on a Schedule 13D filed on January 25, 2022. Includes 7,873,250 shares held by MCAP Acquisition, LLC. Mr. Koenig may be deemed to beneficially own shares held by MCAP Acquisition, LLC by virtue of his control over Monroe Capital Management Advisors, LLC, the manager of MCAP, but disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein. The address of MCAP Acquisition, LLC is 311 South Wacker Drive, Suite 6400, Chicago, Illinois 60606.
- (12) Based solely on a Schedule 13G filed on April 6, 2022. Mr. Iacovone's business address is c/o AJI Capital 315 Main Street 2nd Floor Huntington NY 11743.
- (13) Based solely upon a Schedule 13G/A filed on February 14, 2023. Consists of (i) 3,972,638 shares of common stock and (ii) 1,247,028 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants. Corbin Capital Partners, L.P. and Corbin Capital Partners GP, LLC share voting and dispositive control with respect to the shares held by Corbin Capital Partners, L.P. Daniel Friedman may be deemed to be an indirect beneficial owner of the reported securities. The address of both Corbin Capital Partners, L.P. and Corbin Capital Partners GP, LLC is 590 Madison Avenue, 31st Floor, New York, NY 10022.

Change in Control

For a discussion of the change in control that the Company underwent in December 2021, please see "Board Meetings—Business Combination". The Company hereby confirms that to its knowledge no shares held by its principal stockholders are pledged or otherwise available to lenders as security.

PROPOSAL TWO

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Our Audit Committee has retained BDO as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2023. A proposal will be presented at the Annual Meeting to ratify this retention. Ratification of the retention of our independent registered public accounting firm requires the affirmative vote of the majority of shares present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote. If the stockholders fail to ratify such selection, another independent registered public accounting firm will be considered by our Audit Committee, but the Audit Committee may nonetheless choose to engage BDO. Even if the retention of BDO is ratified, the Audit Committee in its discretion may select a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. We have been advised that a representative of BDO will be present at the Annual Meeting and will be available to respond to appropriate questions and, if such person chooses to do so, make a statement.

THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" RATIFICATION OF THE RETENTION OF BDO AS OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR 2023.

CHANGE IN AUDITORS

On December 22, 2021, our board of directors approved the engagement of BDO as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm to audit the Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2021. BDO served as the independent registered public accounting firm of Legacy AdTheorent prior to the Business Combination. Accordingly, Marcum LLP ("Marcum"), MCAP's independent registered public accounting firm prior to the Business Combination, was informed that it would be dismissed and replaced by BDO as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm.

The audit report of Marcum on MCAP's financial statements as of December 31, 2020, and for the period from November 12, 2020 (date of inception) to December 31, 2020, did not contain an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion, and was not qualified or modified as to uncertainties, audit scope, or accounting principles except for an explanatory paragraph in such report regarding substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

During the period from November 12, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2020, and the subsequent period through September 30, 2021, there were no disagreements with Marcum on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of Marcum, would have caused it to make a reference in connection with their opinion to the subject matter of the disagreement or reportable events as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.

The Company has provided Marcum with a copy of the disclosures made by us in response to Item 304(a) of Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act ("Regulation S-K") and has requested that Marcum furnish the Company with a letter addressed to the SEC stating whether it agrees with the statements made by the registrant in response to Item 304(a) of Regulation S-K and, if not, stating the respects in which it does not agree.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

BDO billed the Company for services for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, as set forth in the table below. The fees listed are aggregate fees for services performed for the year—regardless of when the fee was actually billed.

| | FY | FY 2021 | | | |
|--------------------|----|---------|----|-------|--|
| Audit Fees | \$ | 728 | \$ | 1,762 | |
| Audit-Related Fees | | — | | — | |
| Tax Fees | | — | | — | |
| All Other Fees | | _ | | _ | |
| Total | \$ | 728 | \$ | 1,762 | |

Audit Fees—Consists of fees for professional services necessary to perform an audit or review in accordance with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, including services rendered for the audit of our annual financial statements, quarterly reviews of the Company's interim financial statements, as well as services related to Forms S-1 and S-4 in 2021 and 2022.

Audit-Related Fees—There were no audit-related fees for 2022.

Tax Fees—There were no tax fees for 2022.

All Other Fees—There were no other fees for 2022.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures—The Audit Committee has adopted a policy that requires advance approval of all audit, audit-related, tax services and other services performed by the independent registered public accounting firm. The policy provides for pre-approval by the Audit Committee of specifically defined audit and non-audit services.

Unless the specific service has been previously pre-approved with respect to that year, the Audit Committee must approve the permitted service before the independent auditor is engaged to perform it. The Audit Committee has delegated to the Chair of the Audit Committee authority to approve permitted services, provided that the Chair reports any decisions to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting.

Attendance at Annual Meeting—Representatives of BDO are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting and will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. Because we expect representatives of BDO to be present at the Annual Meeting, representatives of BDO are expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 with management.

The Audit Committee has discussed with our independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by the applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and SEC.

The Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent accountant required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent accountant's communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence, and has discussed with the independent accountant the independent accountant's independence.

Based on these reviews and discussions, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that our audited financial statements be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 for filing with the SEC.

The Audit Committee has also appointed BDO as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Respectfully submitted,

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Zia Uddin Ben Tatta Kihara Kiarie



PROPOSAL THREE THE OFFICER EXCULPATION AMENDMENT

Background of the Proposal

The State of Delaware, which is the Company's state of incorporation, recently enacted legislation that enables Delaware companies to limit the liability of certain of their officers in limited circumstances. In light of this update, we are proposing the Officer Exculpation Amendment to the Company's Charter to add a provision exculpating certain of the Company's officers from liability, as permitted by Delaware law. The new Delaware legislation only permits, and the Officer Exculpation Amendment would only permit, exculpation for direct claims (as opposed to derivative claims made by stockholders on behalf of the corporation) and would not apply to breaches of the duty of loyalty, acts or omissions not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, or any transaction in which the officer derived an improper personal benefit.

Reasons for the Proposal

The Board believes that eliminating personal monetary liability for officers under certain circumstances is reasonable and appropriate.

Delaware corporations that fail to adopt officer exculpation provisions may experience a disproportionate amount of nuisance litigation and disproportionately increased costs in the form of increased director and officer liability insurance premiums, as well as diversion of management attention from the business of the corporation. Prior to the amendment of Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL, Delaware law permitted Delaware corporations to exculpate directors from personal liability for monetary damages associated with breaches of the duty of care, but that protection did not extend to a Delaware corporation's officers. Consequently, shareholder plaintiffs have employed the tactic of bringing certain claims that would otherwise be exculpated if brought against directors against individual officers to avoid dismissal of such claims. The amendment to Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL was adopted to address inconsistent treatment between officers and directors and the rising costs of litigation and insurance. Adopting the Officer Exculpation Amendment would facilitate the Company diverting additional resources towards its business rather than expenses related to nuisance litigation and liability insurance premiums.

Adopting the Officer Exculpation Amendment would enable our officers to exercise their business judgment in furtherance of our shareholders' interests without the potential distraction of risking personal liability. An officer's role often requires them to make decisions on crucial matters and in response to time-sensitive opportunities and challenges, which can create substantial risk of investigations, claims, actions, suits, or proceedings seeking to impose liability based on hindsight, and regardless of merit.

Further, we believe that failing to adopt the Officer Exculpation Amendment could impact our recruitment and retention of exceptional officer candidates who conclude that the potential exposure to liabilities, costs of defense, and other risks of proceedings exceeds the benefits of serving as an officer of the Company.

A Delaware corporation seeking to extend the benefits of the newly amended Section 102(b)(7) to its corporate officers must amend its certificate of incorporation, as the protections do not apply automatically and must be embedded in the corporation's certificate of incorporation to be effective. Accordingly, the Board has determined it advisable and in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders to seek stockholders' approval for the Officer Exculpation Amendment.

Vote Required and Recommendation of the Board of Directors

Approval by stockholders of the Officer Exculpation Amendment requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding voting stock of the Company.

Taking into account the narrow class and type of claims for which officers' liability would be exculpated, and the benefits the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes would accrue to the Company and its stockholders in the form of (i) an enhanced ability to attract and retain talented officers, (ii) limiting litigation and



insurance liability premium costs for its officers and (iii) better ensuring the Company's officers would be able to exercise their business judgment, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee recommended to the Board an amendment to the Charter to provide such exculpation to the extent permitted by Delaware law. Accordingly, we ask our stockholders to approve the Officer Exculpation Amendment.

The discussion above is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the proposed Officer Exculpation Amendment, which is attached hereto as Annex A. If the stockholders approve the Officer Exculpation Amendment at the Annual Meeting, the Company will file a Certificate of Amendment to the Charter with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware.

THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" THE OFFICER EXCULPATION AMENDMENT PROPOSAL.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2024 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Stockholders who intend to present proposals at the Company's annual meeting of stockholders in 2024 pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act must send notice of their proposal to us so that we receive it no later than December 14, 2023. Stockholders who intend to present proposals at the annual meeting of stockholders in 2024 other than pursuant to Rule 14a-8 must comply with the notice provisions in our Bylaws. Under these requirements, proposals must be brought no earlier than January 25, 2024 and no later than February 23, 2024. Stockholder proposals should be addressed to AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc. 330 Hudson Street, 13th Floor New York, New York 10013, Attention: Secretary.

To comply with the universal proxy rules (once effective), stockholders who intend to solicit proxies in support of director nominees other than the Company's nominees must provide notice that sets forth the information required by Rule 14a-19 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 no later than Monday, March 25, 2024.

OTHER MATTERS

We know of no other matters to be submitted to the stockholders at the Annual Meeting. If any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, persons named in the proxy intend to vote the shares they represent in accordance with their own judgments.

Upon written request by any stockholder entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting, we will promptly furnish, without charge, a copy of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, which we filed with the SEC, including AdTheorent's consolidated financial statements. If the person requesting the report was not a stockholder of record on March 31, 2023, the request must contain a good faith representation that he or she was a beneficial owner of our common stock at the close of business on that date. Requests should be addressed to AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc. 330 Hudson Street, 13th Floor New York, New York 10013, Attention: Secretary.

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. WE URGE YOU TO VOTE TODAY BY TELEPHONE, VIA THE INTERNET OR BY MAIL.

April [•], 2023

By Order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ James Lawson

James Lawson Chief Executive Officer

ANNEX A OFFICER EXCULPATION AMENDMENT LANGUAGE

Article X, which would be added to our Charter pursuant to the Officer Exculpation Amendment, is posted below. The full text of the Company's currently applicable Charter was filed as exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 29, 2021.

ARTICLE X LIABILITY OF OFFICERS

To the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL, as the same exists or as may hereafter be amended, an officer of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as an officer. If the DGCL is amended after approval by the stockholders of this Article X to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting the personal liability of officers, then the liability of an officer of the Corporation shall be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL as so amended, automatically and without further action, upon the date of such amendment. AdTheorent Holding Company, Inc. 330 Rudson Street, 13th Floor New York, NY 10013



VIEW MATERIALS & VOTE
VOTE BY INTERNET - www.proxyvote.com or scan the OR Barcode above
Use the internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of
formation. Vote by 1159 PM ET or 06/25/2023. Have your proxy card in hand when
you access the web site and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create
an electronic voting instruction form.
During The Meeting - Go to <u>www.virtualaharsholdsarmeeting.com/ADTH2023</u>
You may attend the meeting via the internet and vote during the meeting. Have the
instructions.
VOTE BY PHONE - 1-800-690-6903
Use any touch-some telephone to transmit your voting instructions. Vote by 1159 P.M. ET
on 055/23023. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then follow the
instructions.
VOTE FW MAI

Instructions. VOTE BY MAIL Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope we have provided or return it to Vote Processing, ob Broadnidge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717.

TO VOTE. MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS:

| | 71170 | DROVV C | | | | | | CHIER | AND | DATER | DETA | P THIS P | RETURN | THIS POR | TION |
|--|---|-------------|-----------------------|--------|-------------------|--------------------------|---------|--------------------|------------------|--|------|----------|--------|----------|------|
| | THIS | PROXY C | ARD I | S VA | ALID O | NLY WHE | N 51 | GNED | AND | DATED. | | 51555 é | | | |
| The Board of Directors the following: | recommends you vote "F | OR" | All | All | For All Except | individ | and w | minee(| s), m | vote for ark "For ber(s) of ow. | A11 | | | 8. | |
| 1. Election of Class I | I Directors | | - | - | - | | | | | | | | | | |
| Nominees | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 01) Vineet Mehra | 02) Zia Uddin | | 0 | 3) Shi | uangxiu) | ſu | | | | | | | | | |
| The Board of Directors | recommends you vote "F | OR" proposa | als 2 and | 1 3: | | | | | | | | | For | Against | Abs |
| Ratify the selection year ending December | n of BDO USA, LLP as t r 31, 2023. | he Company' | 's indepe | endent | registe | red public | accou | nting f | irm for | the | | | 0 | D | C |
| To approve an amend new Delaware law provide the second sec | ment to the Company's ovisions regarding the | Second Amer | nded and on of cer | Resta | of the C | ificate of ompany's e | f Incor | poratio ve offi | n to re cers. | flect | | | 0 | D | C |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Please sign exactly as attorney, executor, adm title as such. Joint ow sign. If a corporation partnership name by aut | inistrator, or other f ners should each sign or partnership, please | iduciary, p | All hol | ders | must | | | | | | | | | | |

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting: The Notice and Proxy Statement and Form 10-K are available at www.proxyvole.com



